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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Background

Empire Petroleum Corporation, a Delaware corporation, was incorporated in the State of Utah in August 1983 under
the name Chambers Energy Corporation and domesticated in Delaware in March 1985 under the name Americomm
Corporation. The name was changed to Americomm Resources Corporation in July 1995. On May 29, 2001,
Americomm Resources Corporation acquired Empire Petroleum Corporation, which became a wholly owned
subsidiary of Americomm Resources Corporation. On August 15, 2001, Americomm Resources Corporation and
Empire Petroleum Corporation merged and the resulting entity's name was changed to Empire Petroleum Corporation.
Empire Petroleum Corporation has two wholly owned subsidiaries, Empire Louisiana LLC ("Empire Louisiana") and
Empire North Dakota LLC ("Empire North Dakota"). The consolidated financial statements of Empire Petroleum
Corporation and subsidiaries ("Empire", the "Company", "we") include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiaries.

Business and Properties

On August 28, 2018, the Company purchased oil producing properties from Cardinal Exploration and Production
Company ("Cardinal") for a purchase price of $323,000. The effective date of the transaction was June 1, 2018. After
certain adjustments related to the effective date, the total proceeds paid to Cardinal were $293,966. Such proceeds
were paid from sales of unregistered securities of the Company. The oil and gas properties purchased from Cardinal
include four active operated wells in Louisiana, including one saltwater disposal well. Empire's working interests in
the wells are 100%.

On September 20, 2018, the Company purchased oil and natural gas properties from Exodus Energy, Inc. ("Exodus")
for a purchase price of $969,042. Post close adjustments reduced the purchase price to $959,338. The effective date of
the transaction was August 1, 2018. Such proceeds were paid from loan proceeds and sales of unregistered securities.
The oil and gas properties include 1,500 gross developed and undeveloped acres and eight wells. The Company's
working interests in the wells range from 50% to 90%.

On October 29, 2018, the Company purchased oil and natural gas properties from Riviera Upstream, LLC formerly
known as Linn Energy Holdings, LLC ("Riviera") for a purchase price of $205,000. Post close adjustments reduced
the total purchase price to $162,273. The effective date of the transaction was October 1, 2018. The oil and natural
gas properties purchased include non-operated working interest in four producing wells and two salt water disposal
wells in which the Company already owned an operated interest.

All of the Company's producing properties are located in Louisiana and, as of December 31, 2018, such properties
were producing approximately 100 net barrels of oil equivalent (BOE) per day.

Marketing Arrangements

We market our oil and natural gas in accordance with standard energy industry practices. The marketing effort
endeavors to obtain the combined highest netback and most secure market available at that time.

We sell production at the lease locations to third-party purchasers via truck transport. We do not transport, refine or
process the oil we produce. We sell our produced oil under contracts using market-based pricing, which is adjusted for
differentials based upon oil quality.
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We sell our natural gas under natural gas purchase contracts using market-based pricing, which is sold at the lease
location.

Principal Customers

We sell our oil and natural gas production to marketers which is transported by truck to storage facilities arranged by
the marketers. Our marketing of oil and natural gas can be affected by factors beyond our control, the effects of which
cannot be accurately predicted.

For 2018, revenues from oil and natural gas sales to Katrina Energy, LL.C and Cokinos Natural Gas Company
respectively, accounted for all of our total operating revenues. While the loss of these purchasers may result in a
temporary interruption in sales of, or a lower price for, our production, we believe that the loss of these purchasers
would not have a material adverse effect on our operations, as there are alternative purchasers in our producing region.

-4 -
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Competition

The oil and natural gas industry in the areas in which we operate is highly competitive. We encounter strong
competition from numerous parties, ranging generally from small independent producers to major integrated
companies. We primarily encounter significant competition in acquiring properties. At higher commodity prices, we
also face competition in contracting for drilling, pressure pumping and workover equipment and securing trained
personnel. Many of these competitors have financial, technical and personnel resources substantially larger than ours.
As a result, our competitors may be able to pay more for desirable properties, or to evaluate, bid for and purchase a
greater number of properties or prospects than our financial or personnel resources will permit.

In addition to competition for drilling, pressure pumping and workover equipment, we are also affected by the
availability of related equipment and materials. The oil and natural gas industry periodically experiences shortages of
drilling and workover rigs, equipment, pipe, materials and personnel, which can delay drilling, workover and
exploration activities and cause significant price increases. We are unable to predict the timing or duration of any such
shortages.

Oil and Natural Gas Reserves

The estimates of our proved reserves at December 31, 2018, all of which were located in the United States, were based
on evaluations prepared by an independent petroleum engineering firm. Reserves were estimated in accordance with
guidelines established by the SEC and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB").

The following table represents the Company's oil and natural gas reserves at December 31, 2018.

Natural
Oil Gas

(Mbbl) (MMcf)

Proved developed 268.98 887.29
Proved undeveloped 29342 0
Proved behind pipe 91.15 0
Proved shut in 7.49 0

Total Proved 661.04 887.29

Investment in Masterson West 11

On December 22, 2016, the Company entered into a subscription and contribution agreement with Masterson West,
LLC ("Masterson West") (the "Contribution Agreement") relating to the newly formed Masterson West II, LLC, a
Texas limited liability company ("Masterson West II"). Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, among other things,
(a) at the initial closing, the Company agreed to contribute 2,000,000 shares of its common stock, par value $0.001 per
share (the "Common Stock"), to Masterson West II, along with an additional 38,000,000 shares of Common Stock and
(b) at the final closing, Masterson West had an obligation to contribute certain oil and gas properties (the "Contributed
Properties") to Masterson West II in exchange for the Company contributing cash of not less than $9,000,000 and up
to $18,000,000 to Masterson West II. The final closing was scheduled to occur no later than April 1, 2017. Also on
December 22, 2016, the Company entered into a limited liability agreement of Masterson West II with Masterson
West (the "LLC Agreement"). On February 18, 2017, Gary C. Adams, the majority owner of Masterson West
unexpectedly passed away. As a result of this development, the transactions were not consummated. On December 1,
2018, the Company and Masterson West agreed to terminate and unwind the Contribution Agreement in a manner as
if the parties had never entered into the Contribution Agreement. As a result of the Termination Agreement, in 2018
the Company has reversed its $300,000 investment in Masterson West II and the related common stock subscription
and paid in capital.
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Changes in Directors and Executive Officers
On November 28, 2017, Thomas Pritchard was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Markets; Price Volatility

The market price of oil and gas is volatile, subject to speculative movement and depends upon numerous factors
beyond the control of the Company, including expectations regarding inflation, global and regional demand, political
and economic conditions and production costs. Future profitability, if any, will depend substantially upon the
prevailing prices for oil and gas. If the market price for oil and gas remains depressed in the future, it could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's ability to raise additional capital necessary to finance operations. Lower oil
and gas prices may also reduce the amount of oil and gas, if any, that can be produced economically from the
Company's properties. The Company anticipates that the prices of oil and gas will fluctuate in the near future.

Regulation

The oil and gas industry is subject to extensive federal, state and local laws and regulations governing the production,
transportation and sale of hydrocarbons as well as the taxation of income resulting therefrom.

Legislation affecting the oil and gas industry is constantly changing. Numerous federal and state departments and
agencies have issued rules and regulations applicable to the oil and gas industry. In general, these rules and
regulations regulate, among other things, the extent to which acreage may be acquired or relinquished; spacing of
wells; measures required for preventing waste of oil and gas resources; and, in some cases, rates of production. The
heavy and increasing regulatory burdens on the oil and gas industry increase the Company's cost of doing business
and, consequently, affect profitability.

Many times, leases are granted by the federal government and administered by the BLM and the Minerals
Management Service ("MMS") of the U.S. Department of the Interior, both of which are federal agencies. Such leases
are issued through competitive bidding, contain relatively standardized terms and require compliance with detailed
BLM and MMS regulations and orders (which are subject to change by the BLM and the MMS). Leases are also
accompanied by stipulations imposing restrictions on surface use and operations. Operations to be conducted by the
Company on federal oil and gas leases must comply with numerous regulatory restrictions, including various
nondiscrimination statutes. Federal leases also generally require a complete archaeology and environmental impact
assessment prior to the authorization of an exploration or development plan.

The oil and gas operations are also subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection. These laws govern, among other things, the amounts and types of substances and materials
that may be released into the environment, the issuance of permits in connection with exploration, drilling and
production activities, the reclamation and abandonment of wells and facility sites and the remediation of contaminated
sites. These laws and regulations may impose substantial liabilities if the Company fails to comply or if any
contamination results from the Company's operations.

Employees

The Company has one employee, the Vice President of Operations. On November 28, 2017, Thomas Pritchard was
appointed as the Company's Chief Executive Officer. Michael Morrisett serves as the Company's President.

On November 29, 2017, the Company issued warrants to purchase 500,000 shares of Common Stock at $0.15 per
share, and 2,500,000 shares of Common Stock at $0.25 per share, to Anthony Kamin as consideration for his service
on the Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company paid Mr. Morrisett
$156,400 and $54,700 respectively, for services rendered. The Company paid Mr. Pritchard $156,400 and $10,000 in
2018 and 2017 respectively for services rendered as Chief Executive Officer. For the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017, Mr. Pritchard's firm was paid $24,200 and $56,764 respectively, for professional services. On November
29, 2017, the Company issued warrants to purchase 500,000 shares of Common Stock at $0.25 per share to each of

10
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Mr. Pritchard and Mr. Morrisett for services rendered to the Company.
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ITEM 1A.RISK FACTORS.

Not applicable.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

In 2018, the Company, through its subsidiary, Empire Louisiana, LLC, purchased oil and natural gas properties in
three transactions in St. Landry and Beauregard parishes in Louisiana. The acquisitions added approximately 3,082
developed and undeveloped acres to the Company's portfolio.

The following table sets forth a summary of our production and operating data for the years ended December 31,
2018. The Company had no production prior to August, 2018 and the table only includes information for the portion
of 2018 in which the Company owned the properties. Because of normal production declines, increased or decreased
drilling activities, fluctuations in commodity prices and the effects of acquisitions or divestitures, the historical
information presented below should not be interpreted as being indicative of future results.

Year
ended
December
31,2018
Production and operating data:
Net production volumes:
Oil (Bbl) 4,284
Natural gas (Mcf) 12,111
Total (Boe) 6,302
Average price per unit:
Oil (a) $70.29
Natural gas (a) $3.05
Total (Boe) $52.89
Operating costs and expenses per Boe:
Oil and natural gas production $ 18.45
Production and ad valorem taxes $3.36
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion $ 2.77
General & administrative $ 194.63

(a)Includes the effect of net cash receipts (payments on) derivatives.

At December 31, 2018 the Company has 9 gross and 8.1 net productive wells.
The Company has no wells in process as of December 31, 2018 and had no drilling activity during the year.

The Company has no delivery commitments for oil or natural gas.

12
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

As of December 31, 2018, the Company was not subject to any legal proceedings.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.

13
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
5. ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information
The Company's Common Stock is traded on the OTCQB under the symbol "EMPR".

The following table sets forth the high and low bid information for the Company's common stock during the time
periods indicated.

Year ended December 31, 2017:
Quarter High Low
03/31/17 $0.51 $0.15
06/30/17 $0.17 $0.06
09/30/17 $0.25 $0.04
12/31/17 $0.25 $0.10
Year ended December 31, 2018:
Quarter High Low
03/31/18 $0.30 $0.10
06/30/18 $0.25 $0.11
09/30/18 $0.40 $0.13
12/31/18 $0.25 $0.10

Quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown or commission and may not represent actual
transactions.

At December 31, 2018, there were approximately 200 stockholders of record of the Company's Common Stock.
Dividends

The Company has never paid cash dividends on its Common Stock. The Company intends to retain future earnings for
use in its business and, therefore, does not anticipate paying cash dividends on its Common Stock in the foreseeable
future.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

Not applicable.

ITEM MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
7. OPERATIONS.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.

14
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All statements, other than statements of historical fact, contained in this report are forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements generally are accompanied by words such as "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "expect,"
"may," "might,"” "potential,” "project” or similar statements.

nn

nn

Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, no
assurance can be given that such expectations will prove to be correct. Factors that could cause results to differ
materially from the results discussed in such forward-looking statements include:

-the need for additional capital,

-the costs expected to be incurred in exploration and development,

-unforeseen engineering, mechanical or technological difficulties in drilling wells,

-uncertainty of exploration results,

-operating hazards,

-competition from other natural resource companies,

-the fluctuations of prices for oil and gas,

-the effects of governmental and environmental regulation, and

_general economic conditions and other risks described in the Company's filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the "SEC").

_8-
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Information on these and other risk factors are discussed under "Factors That May Affect Future Results" below.
Accordingly, the actual results of operations in the future may vary widely from the forward-looking statements
included herein, and all forward-looking statements in this Form 10-K are expressly qualified in their entirety by the
cautionary statements in this paragraph.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect management's
analysis, judgment, belief and expectations only as of the date hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to
publicly revise these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date hereof.

Factors That May Affect Future Results
The Company has limited financial resources.

For the past three years, with the exception of the financial institution note payable entered into in 2018, the Company
has financed its operations primarily from sales of its equity securities and convertible notes issued to individual
investors. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to continue to finance its operations through the sale
of its equity securities, or through loans or advances by third parties.

In 2018, the Company acquired certain oil and gas properties. However, the Company reported losses of $(1,017,131)
and $(830,067) for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The Company also had an
accumulated deficit of $(17,128,346) as of December 31, 2018. The Company can provide no assurance that it will be
profitable in the future and, if the Company does not become profitable, it may have to suspend its operations. As a
result of the foregoing, the audit report of the Company's independent registered public accounting firm relating to the
Company's financial statements has been modified because of a going concern uncertainty. If the Company is able to
raise the funds necessary to continue its operations, its future performance will be dependent on the success of its
investments. The failure of drilling activities to achieve sufficient quantities of economically attractive reserves and
production would have a material adverse effect on the Company's liquidity, operations and financial results.

The Company could be adversely affected by fluctuations in oil and gas prices.

Even if the Company's drilling activities achieve commercial quantities of economically attractive reserves and
production revenue, the Company will remain subject to prevailing prices for oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids,
which are dependent upon numerous factors such as weather, economic, political and regulatory developments and
competition from other sources of energy. The volatile nature of the energy markets makes it particularly difficult to
estimate future prices of oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids. Prices of oil and natural gas are subject to wide
fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes in circumstances, and there can be no assurance that future
prolonged decreases in such prices will not occur. All of these factors are beyond the control of the Company. Any
significant decline in oil and gas prices could have a material adverse effect on the Company's liquidity, operations
and financial condition.

The Company could be adversely affected by increased costs of service providers utilized by the Company.

In accordance with customary industry practice, the Company has relied and will rely on independent third-party
service providers to provide most of the services necessary to drill new wells, including drilling rigs and related
equipment and services, horizontal drilling equipment and services, trucking services, tubulars, fracking and
completion services and production equipment. The industry has experienced significant price fluctuations for these
services during the last year and this trend is expected to continue into the future. These cost uncertainties could, in
the future, significantly increase the Company's development costs and decrease the return possible from drilling and
development activities, and possibly render the development of certain proved undeveloped reserves uneconomical.
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Our producing properties and proved reserves are concentrated in Louisiana, making us vulnerable to risks associated
with operating in one major geographic area.

Our producing properties are geographically concentrated in Louisiana. At December 31, 2018, all of our total
estimated proved reserves were attributable to properties located in this area. As a result of this concentration, we are
exposed to the impact of regional supply and demand factors, delays or interruptions of production from wells in this
area caused by governmental regulation, processing or transportation capacity constraints, market limitations, severe
weather events, water shortages or other drought related conditions or interruption of the processing or transportation
of oil or natural gas.

This concentration of assets exposes us to additional risks, such as changes in field-wide rules and regulations that
could cause us to permanently or temporarily shut-in all of our wells within a field.

The Standardized Measure and PV-10 of our estimated reserves may not be accurate estimates of the current fair
value of our estimated proved oil and natural gas reserves.

Standardized Measure is a reporting convention that provides a common basis for comparing oil and natural gas
companies subject to the rules and regulations of the SEC. Our non-GAAP financial measure, PV-10, is a similar
reporting convention that we have disclosed in this report. Both measures require the use of operating and
development costs prevailing as of the date of computation. Consequently, they will not reflect the prices ordinarily
received or that will be received for oil and natural gas production because of varying market conditions, nor may it
reflect the actual costs that will be required to produce or develop the oil and natural gas properties. Accordingly,
estimates included herein of future net cash flows may be materially different from the future net cash flows that are
ultimately received. In addition, the 10 percent discount factor, which is required by the rules and regulations of the
SEC to be used in calculating discounted future net cash flows for reporting purposes, may not be the most
appropriate discount factor based on interest rates in effect from time to time and risks associated with our company or
the oil and natural gas industry in general.

Therefore, Standardized Measure and PV-10 included in this report should not be construed as accurate estimates of
the current fair value of our proved reserves. Our reserve estimates and our computation of future net cash flows at
December 31, 2018 are based on SEC pricing of (i) $ 68.74 per Bbl oil price and (ii) $ 2.84 per MMBtu natural gas
price.

Climate change legislation, regulations restricting emissions of "greenhouse gases" (GHG's) or legal or other action
taken by public or private entities related to climate change could result in increased operating costs and reduced
demand for the oil and natural gas that we produce.

In response to findings that emissions of carbon dioxide, methane and other greenhouse gases present an
endangerment to public health and the environment, the EPA has issued regulations to restrict emissions of GHGs
under existing provisions of the CAA. These regulations include limits on tailpipe emissions from motor vehicles and
preconstruction and operating permit requirements for certain large stationary sources. The EPA has also adopted
rules requiring the reporting of GHG emissions from specified large GHG emission sources in the United States, as
well as certain onshore oil and natural gas production facilities, on an annual basis, including GHG emissions
resulting from the completion and workover operations of hydraulically fractured oil wells. Recent federal regulatory
action with respect to climate change has focused on methane emissions. For example, in June 2016, the EPA
finalized new air emission controls for emissions of methane from certain equipment and processes in the oil and
natural gas source category, including production, processing, transmission and storage activities. The final rule
package includes first-time standards to address emissions of methane from equipment and processes across the
source category, including hydraulically fractured oil and natural gas well completions, and also imposes leak
detection and repair requirements on operators. However, in June 2017, the EPA proposed a two year stay of fugitive
emissions monitoring requirements, pneumatic pump standards, and closed vent system certification requirements in
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the 2016 rule while it reconsiders these aspects of the rule. Additionally, on September 11, 2018, the EPA proposed
targeted improvements to the 2016 rule, including amendments to the rule's fugitive emissions monitoring
requirements, and expects to "significantly reduce" the regulatory burden of the rule in doing so. The BLM finalized
similar rules in November 2016 that limit methane emissions from new and existing oil and natural gas operations on
federal lands through limitations on the venting and flaring of gas, as well as enhanced leak detection and repair
requirements but then finalized a revised rule in 2018 which scaled back the waste prevention requirements of the
2016 rule. Environmental groups have sued in federal district court to challenge the legality of aspects of the revised
rule, and the outcome of this litigation is currently uncertain. These methane emission rules have the potential to
increase our compliance costs.

While Congress has from time to time considered legislation to reduce emissions of GHGs, there has not been
significant activity in the form of adopted legislation to reduce emissions of GHGs in recent years. In the absence of
Congressional action, many states have established rules aimed at reducing GHG emissions, including GHG cap and
trade programs. Most of these cap and trade programs work by requiring major sources of emissions, such as electric
power plants, or major producers of fuels, such as refineries and natural gas processing plants, to acquire and
surrender emission allowances. The number of allowances available for purchase is reduced each year in an effort to
achieve the overall GHG emission reduction goal. In the future, the United States may also choose to adhere to
international agreements targeting GHG reductions.

-10 -
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The adoption of legislation or regulatory programs to reduce emissions of GHGs could require us to incur increased
operating costs, such as costs to purchase and operate emissions control systems, to acquire emissions allowances or
to comply with new regulatory or reporting requirements. Any such legislation or regulatory programs could also
increase the cost of consuming, and thereby reduce demand for, the oil and natural gas we produce. Consequently,
legislation and regulatory programs to reduce emissions of GHGs could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Reduced demand for the oil and natural gas that we produce could also
have the effect of lowering the value of our reserves. It should also be noted that some scientists have concluded that
increasing concentrations of GHGs in the earth's atmosphere may produce climate changes that have significant
physical effects, such as increased frequency and severity of storms, droughts, and floods and other climatic events. If
any such effects were to occur, they could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
In addition, there have also been efforts in recent years to influence the investment community, including investment
advisors and certain sovereign wealth, pension and endowment funds promoting divestment of fossil fuel equities and
pressuring lenders to limit funding to companies engaged in the extraction of fossil fuel reserves. Such environmental
activism and initiatives aimed at limiting climate change and reducing air pollution could interfere with our business
activities, operations and ability to access capital. Finally, increasing attention to the risks of climate change has
resulted in an increased possibility of lawsuits or investigations brought by public and private entities against oil and
natural gas companies in connection with their GHG emissions. Should we be targeted by any such litigation or
investigations, we may incur liability, which, to the extent that societal pressures or political or other factors are
involved, could be imposed without regard to the causation of or contribution to the asserted damage, or to other
mitigating factors. The ultimate impact of GHG emissions-related agreements, legislation and measures on our
company's financial performance is highly uncertain because the Company is unable to predict with certainty, for a
multitude of individual jurisdictions, the outcome of political decision-making processes and the variables and
tradeoffs that inevitably occur in connection with such processes.

The Company's insurance policies may not adequately protect the Company against certain unforeseen risks.

In accordance with customary industry practice, the Company maintains insurance against some, but not all, of the
risks described herein. There can be no assurance that any insurance will be adequate to cover the Company's losses or
liabilities. The Company cannot predict the continued availability of insurance, or its availability at premium levels
that justify its purchase.

The Company is subject to various environmental risks, and governmental regulation relating to environmental
matters.

The Company is subject to a variety of federal, state and local governmental laws and regulations related to the
storage, use, discharge and disposal of toxic, volatile or otherwise hazardous materials. These regulations subject the
Company to increased operating costs and potential liability associated with the use and disposal of hazardous
materials. Although these laws and regulations have not had a material adverse effect on the Company's financial
condition or results of operations, there can be no assurance that the Company will not be required to make material
expenditures in the future. Moreover, the Company anticipates that such laws and regulations will become
increasingly stringent in the future, which could lead to material costs for environmental compliance and remediation
by the Company. Any failure by the Company to obtain required permits for, control the use of, or adequately restrict
the discharge of hazardous substances under present or future regulations could subject the Company to substantial
liability or could cause its operations to be suspended. Such liability or suspension of operations could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Company's activities are subject to extensive governmental regulation. Oil and gas operations are subject to
various federal, state and local governmental regulations that may be changed from time to time in response to
economic or political conditions. From time to time, regulatory agencies have imposed price controls and limitations
on production in order to conserve supplies of oil and gas. In addition, the production, handling, storage,
transportation and disposal of oil and gas, by-products thereof and other substances and materials produced or used in
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connection with oil and gas operations are subject to regulation under federal, state and local laws and regulations
primarily relating to protection of human health and the environment. To date, expenditures related to complying with
these laws and for remediation of existing environmental contamination have not been significant in relation to the
operations of the Company. There can be no assurance that the trend of more expansive and stricter environmental
legislation and regulations will not continue.

Estimates of proved reserves and future net cash flows are not precise. The actual quantities of our proved reserves
and our future net cash flows may prove to be lower than estimated.

Numerous uncertainties exist in estimating quantities of proved reserves and future net cash flows therefrom. Our
estimates of proved reserves and related future net cash flows are based on various assumptions, which may ultimately
prove to be inaccurate. Petroleum engineering is a subjective process of estimating accumulations of oil and natural
gas that cannot be measured in an exact manner. Estimates of economically recoverable oil and natural gas reserves
and of future net cash flows depend upon a number of variable factors and assumptions, including the following:
-historical production from the area compared with production from other producing areas;

-the assumed effects of regulations by governmental agencies;

-the quality, quantity and interpretation of available relevant data;

-assumptions concerning future commodity prices; and

assumptions concerning future operating costs, severance and ad valorem taxes, development costs and workover and
remedial costs.

-11 -
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Because all reserve estimates are to some degree subjective, each of the following items, or other items not identified
below, may differ materially from those assumed in estimating reserves:

-the quantities of oil and natural gas that are ultimately recovered;

-the production and operating costs incurred;

-the amount and timing of future development expenditures; and

-future commodity prices.

Furthermore, different reserve engineers may make different estimates of reserves and cash flows based on the same
data. Our actual production, revenues and expenditures with respect to reserves will likely be different from estimates
and the differences may be material.

As required by the SEC, the estimated discounted future net cash flows from proved reserves are based on the average
previous twelve months first-of-month prices preceding the date of the estimate and costs as of the date of the
estimate, while actual future prices and costs may be materially higher or lower. Actual future net cash flows also will
be affected by factors such as:

-the amount and timing of actual production;

-levels of future capital spending;

-increases or decreases in the supply of or demand for oil and natural gas; and

changes in governmental regulations or
taxation.

Accordingly, estimates included herein of future net cash flows may be materially different from the future net cash
flows that are ultimately received. Therefore, the estimates of discounted future net cash flows in this report should
not be construed as accurate estimates of the current market value of our proved reserves.

Our business requires substantial capital expenditures. We may be unable to obtain needed capital or financing on
satisfactory terms or at all, which could lead to a decline in our oil and natural gas reserves.

The oil and natural gas industry is capital intensive. We make and expect to continue to make substantial capital
expenditures for the acquisition, exploration and development of oil and natural gas reserves. At December 31, 2018,
we had approximately $1.2 million of debt outstanding under our Credit Facility, and we had approximately $3.8
million of unused commitments under our Credit Facility. Expenditures for acquisition, exploration and development
of oil and natural gas properties are the primary use of our capital resources. We intend to finance our future capital
expenditures through borrowings under our Credit Facility. However, our cash flow from operations and access to
capital are subject to a number of variables, including:

-the volume of oil and natural gas we are able to produce from existing wells;

-our ability to transport our oil and natural gas to market;

-the prices at which our commodities are sold;

-the costs of producing oil and natural gas;
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-global credit and securities markets;

-the ability and willingness of lenders and investors to provide capital and the cost of the capital;
-our ability to acquire, locate and produce new reserves;

-the impact of potential changes in our credit ratings; and

-our proved reserves.

-12 -
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We may not generate expected cash flows and may have limited ability to obtain the capital necessary to sustain our
operations at current or anticipated levels. A decline in cash flow from operations or our financing needs may require
us to revise our capital program or alter or increase our capitalization substantially through the issuance of debt or
equity securities. The issuance of additional equity securities could have a dilutive effect on the value of our common
stock. Additional borrowings under our Credit Facility or the issuance of additional debt securities will require that a
greater portion of our cash flow from operations be used for the payment of interest and principal on our debt, thereby
reducing our ability to use cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures and acquisitions. Additional
financing also may not be available on acceptable terms or at all. In the event additional capital resources are
unavailable, we may curtail drilling, development and other activities or be forced to sell some of our assets on an
untimely or unfavorable basis.

The failure to obtain additional financing could result in a curtailment of our operations relating to the development of
our undeveloped acreage or the curtailment of acquisitions that may be favorable to us, which in turn could lead to a
decline in our oil and natural gas reserves, and could adversely affect our production, revenues and results of
operations.

We have substantial indebtedness and may incur substantially more debt. Higher levels of indebtedness makes us
more vulnerable to economic downturn and adverse developments in our business

We had approximately $1.5 million of outstanding aggregate principal indebtedness at December 31, 2018. At
December 31, 2018, commitments from our bank group were $5 million, of which $ 3.8 million was unused
commitments. We continue to review our existing indebtedness, and we may seek to repay, refinance, repurchase,
redeem, exchange or otherwise terminate our indebtedness. If we do seek to refinance our existing indebtedness, there
can be no guarantee that we would be able to execute the refinancing on favorable terms or at all.

As a result of our indebtedness, we use a portion of our cash flow to pay interest, which reduces the amount we have
available to fund our operations and other business activities and could limit our flexibility in planning for or reacting
to changes in our business and the industry in which we operate. Our indebtedness under our Credit Facility is at a

variable interest rate, and so a rise in interest rates will generate greater interest expense.

We may incur substantially more debt in the future. Our Credit Facility contain restrictions on our incurrence of
additional indebtedness.

Any increase in our level of indebtedness could have adverse effects on our financial condition and results of
operations, including:

imposing additional cash requirements on us in order to support interest payments, which reduces the amount
we have available to fund our operations and other business activities;

-increasing the risk that we may default on our debt obligations;

increasing our vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic and industry conditions, economic downturns
and adverse developments in our business;

limiting our ability to sell assets, engage in strategic transactions or obtain additional financing for working capital,
capital expenditures, general corporate and other purposes;

limiting our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business and the industry in which we operate;
and

-increasing our exposure to a rise in interest rates, which will generate greater interest expense.
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Our ability to meet our debt obligations and to reduce our level of indebtedness depends on our future performance,
which is affected by general economic conditions and financial, business and other factors, many of which are out of

our control.

-13 -
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If we are unable to comply with the covenants in our debt agreements, there could be a default under the terms of the
agreements, which could result in an acceleration of payment of funds that we have borrowed.

Our ability to meet our debt obligations and other expenses will depend on our future performance, which will be
affected by financial, business, economic, regulatory and other factors, many of which we are unable to control. If our
cash flow is not sufficient to service our debt, we may be required to refinance debt, sell assets or sell additional
equity on terms that we may not find attractive if it may be done at all. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash
flow and are otherwise unable to obtain funds necessary to meet required payments of principal, premium, if any, and
interest, if any, on our indebtedness, or if we otherwise fail to comply with the various covenants, including financial
and operating covenants, in the agreements governing our indebtedness, we could be in default under the terms of the
agreements governing such indebtedness. In the event of such default:

_the holders of such indebtedness could elect to declare all the funds borrowed thereunder to be due and payable,
together with accrued and unpaid interest;

-the lenders could elect to terminate their commitments thereunder and cease making further loans; and
-we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation.

If our operating performance declines, we may in the future need to obtain waivers under our Senior Revolver Loan
Agreement to avoid being in default. If we breach our covenants and cannot obtain a waiver from the required lenders,
we would be in default and the lenders could exercise their rights, as described above, and we could be forced into
bankruptcy or liquidation.

Our ability to use our existing net operating loss carryforwards or other tax attributes could be limited.

At December 31, 2018, we had approximately $10.8 million of federal NOL carryforwards available to offset against
future taxable income. Utilization of any NOL depends on many factors, including our ability to generate future
taxable income, which cannot be assured.

The Company is subject to intense competition.

The Company operates in a highly competitive environment and competes with major and independent oil and gas
companies for the acquisition of desirable oil and gas properties, as well as for the equipment and labor required to
develop and operate such properties. Many of these competitors have financial and other resources substantially
greater than those of the Company.

The Company currently depends on the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer.

The Company is dependent on the experience, abilities and continued services of its current President, Michael R.
Morrisett, and its Chief Executive Officer, Thomas Pritchard, who currently serve the Company without formal
compensation plans. The loss or reduction of services of Mr. Morrisett and/or Mr. Pritchard could have a material
adverse effect on the Company.

There has been a limited public trading market for the Company's common stock, and there can be no assurance that
an active trading market will be sustained.

There can be no assurance that the Common Stock will trade at or above any particular price in the public market, if at
all. The trading price of the Common Stock could be subject to significant fluctuations in response to variations in

quarterly operating results or even mild expressions of interest on a given day. Accordingly, the Common Stock could
experience substantial price changes in short periods of time. Even if the Company is performing according to its plan
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and there is no legitimate company-specific financial basis for this volatility, it must still be expected that substantial
percentage price swings will occur in the Company's Common Stock for the foreseeable future

The Company does not expect to declare or pay any dividends in the foreseeable future.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividends on its Common Stock. The Company currently intends to retain
future earnings to fund the development and growth of its business, to repay indebtedness and for general corporate
purposes, and therefore, does not anticipate paying any cash dividends on its Common Stock in the foreseeable future.

The Company's common stock may be subject to secondary trading restrictions related to penny stocks.

Certain transactions involving the purchase or sale of Common Stock of the Company may be affected by a SEC rule
for "penny stocks" that imposes additional sales practice burdens and requirements upon broker-dealers that purchase
or sell such securities. For transactions covered by this penny stock rule, broker-dealers must make certain disclosures
to purchasers prior to purchase or sale. Consequently, the penny stock rule may impede the ability of broker-dealers to
purchase or sell the Company's securities for their customers and the ability of persons now owning or subsequently
acquiring the Company's securities to resell such securities.

-14 -
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

GENERAL TO ALL PERIODS

The Company's primary business is the exploration and development of oil and gas interests. The Company has
incurred significant losses from operations, and there is no assurance that it will achieve profitability or obtain funds
necessary to finance its future operations.

For all periods presented, the Company's effective tax rate is 0%. The Company has generated net operating losses
since inception, which would normally reflect a tax benefit in the statement of operations and a deferred asset on the
balance sheet. However, because of the current uncertainty as to the Company's ability to achieve profitability, a
valuation reserve has been established that offsets the amount of any tax benefit available for each period presented in
the statements of operations.

TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018, COMPARED TO TWELVE MONTH PERIOD
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, revenues were $352,374 and $0 respectively. The
Company purchased certain producing properties during 2018.

Unrealized gain on derivatives increased to $113,081 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 from $0 in the
same period due to increase in oil prices since the agreements were entered into.

Operating expenses, production taxes, depreciation and depletion and amortization and accretion increased to
$154,938 cumulatively for the twelve months ended December 31, 2108 from $0 for the same period in 2017. The
increase was due to the acquisition of producing oil and natural gas properties in 2018.

General and administrative expenses increased by $469,400 to $1,226,469 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2018, from $757,069 for the same period in 2017. The increase was primarily due to travel and professional fees
related to the acquisition of oil and natural gas properties and capital raises in 2018.

Interest expense was $101,183 and $72,998 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
The increase in interest expense of $28,185 resulted primarily from the debt issued to acquire oil and natural gas

properties in 2018.

For the reasons discussed above, net loss increased $187,064 from $(830,067) for the twelve months ended December
31,2017, to $(1,017,131) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

GENERAL

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had $84,631 of cash on hand. The Company expects to incur costs related to
future oil and natural gas acquisitions for the foreseeable future. It is expected that management will attempt to raise
additional capital for future investment and working capital opportunities.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
=15 -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Because estimates and assumptions require significant
judgment, future actual results could differ from those estimates and could have a significant impact on the Company's
results of operations, financial position and cash flows. The Company re-evaluates its estimates and assumptions at
least on a quarterly basis. The following policies may involve a higher degree of estimation and assumption:

Successful efforts accounting - Under the successful efforts method of accounting, the Company capitalizes all costs
related to property acquisitions and successful exploratory wells, all development costs and the costs of support
equipment and facilities. Certain costs of exploratory wells are capitalized pending determination that proved reserves
have been found. Such determination is dependent upon the results of planned additional wells and the cost of
required capital expenditures to produce the reserves found.

All costs related to unsuccessful exploratory wells are expensed when such wells are determined to be non-productive
and other exploration costs, including geological and geophysical costs, are expensed as incurred. The application of
the successful efforts method of accounting requires management's judgment to determine the proper designation of
wells as either developmental or exploratory, which will ultimately determine the proper accounting treatment of the
costs incurred. The results from a drilling operation can take considerable time to analyze, and the determination that
commercial reserves have been discovered requires both judgment and application of industry experience. Wells may
be completed that are assumed to be productive and actually deliver oil and gas in quantities insufficient to be
economic, which may result in the abandonment of the wells at a later date. The evaluation of oil and gas leasehold
acquisition costs requires management's judgment to estimate the fair value of exploratory costs related to drilling
activity in a given area.

Impairment of unproved oil and gas properties - Capitalized drilling costs are reviewed periodically for impairment.
Costs related to impaired prospects or unsuccessful exploratory drilling are charged to expense. Management's
assessment of the results of exploration activities, commodity price outlooks, planned future sales or expiration of all
or a portion of such leaseholds impact the amount and timing of impairment provisions. An impairment expense could
result if oil and gas prices decline in the future as it may not be economic to develop some of these unproved
properties.

Asset retirement obligations - the Company accounts for future abandonment costs of wells and related facilities in
accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations. Under this method of accounting, the accrual for future dismantlement and abandonment costs is based
on estimates of these costs for each of the Company's properties based upon the type of production structure, reservoir
characteristics, depth of the reservoir, market demand for equipment, currently available procedures and consultations
with construction and engineering consultants. Because these costs typically extend many years into the future,
estimating these future costs is difficult and requires management to make estimates and judgments that are subject to
future revisions based upon numerous factors, including changing technology and the political and regulatory
environment and, estimates as to the proper discount rate to use and timing of abandonment.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Not applicable.

ITEM 8.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The financial statements of the Company are set forth on pages 27 through 48 at the end of this Form 10-K.
ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
0. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation under the supervision of the
Company's Chief Executive Officer and President (principal officer and principal financial officer) of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Securities
Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(e) and 15d - 15(e). Based on this evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer
and President (principal financial officer) concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report are effective.

-16 -
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Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company's Chief Executive Officer and President (principal financial officer) are responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Company's internal controls were designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to the reliability of the Company's financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

Due to inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of control effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

The Company's Chief Executive Officer and President (principal financial officer) made an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018. In making this
assessment, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and President (principal financial officer) used the criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in 1992. Based on this assessment, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and
President (principal financial officer) concluded that as of December 31, 2018, the Company's internal control over
financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company's independent registered public accounting
firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to attestation by the
Company's independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the SEC, which only require
management's report in this annual report.

Changes on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the
Company's evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures which occurred during the Company's last fiscal quarter
(the fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected or that is reasonably likely to
materially affect the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

The following lists the directors and executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Position
Thomas Pritchard 57  Director and Chief Executive Officer
Michael R. Morrisett 55  Director and President

Anthony N. Kamin 58  Director and Chairman of the Board

Directors hold office until their successors are elected by the stockholders of the Company and qualified. Executive
officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Thomas Pritchard

Tommy Pritchard co-founded Pritchard Griffin Advisors ("PGA") in 2015 to serve the unique investment banking
needs of the energy sector, including upstream, midstream, downstream and renewables. Prior to PGA, he formed
Pritchard Energy Advisors, LLC in 2014. From 2012 to 2014, Mr. Pritchard served as Managing Director of the
Energy Investment Banking division of Imperial Capital. Prior to this role, Mr. Pritchard served as CEO and
Managing Director of Pritchard Capital Partners, which he founded in 2001 and later sold majority ownership in 2011.
Over a period of ten years, Pritchard Capital Partners participated in raising over $15 billion in capital for firms in the
oil and gas industry and provided trading and research services annually to over 150 energy companies. In 1997, Mr.
Pritchard co-founded Offshore Tool and Energy, Inc., an oilfield services company that was sold in 2001. He began
his professional career in 1984 with Drexel Burnham Lambert, and later held key roles at Bear Stearns, Jefferies and
Johnson Rice. Mr. Pritchard earned his undergraduate degree in Geology from Washington and Lee University.

Michael R. Morrisett

Mr. Morrisett has served as a director of the Company and as the Company's President since January 19, 2015. Mr.
Morrisett has over 25 years of experience in investment banking and considerable experience in the management of
non-operated oil and gas operations. From April 2014 to May 2017, Mr. Morrisett has served as the Chief Financial
Officer and is currently a director of a privately held media and technology portfolio company based in San Francisco,
California. From November 2012 to January 2018, Mr. Morrisett served Total Energy Partners Funds, an investment
fund engaged in the ownership of non-operated oil and gas working interests, in several capacities, including as a
partner. Prior to 2013, Mr. Morrisett served in various executive capacities at other investment banking firms and oil
and gas concerns.

Anthony N. Kamin

Anthony N. Kamin serves as the President of Eastwood Investment Management (EIM), which he founded in 2001.
EIM is a multi-strategy, multi-asset class family office which has been an active investor in energy and resource
companies. Mr. Kamin is the Founder and Executive Chairman of Clean Plate Restaurants Inc. He was a Venture
Partner with Venture Strategy Partners from 1998 to 2003 helping launch its venture operations. Mr. Kamin received a

Master's Degree from Yale University in international relations with a concentration in international law in 1985.

Identification of Audit Committee; Audit Committee Financial Expert
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As of December 31, 2018, the Company had not established any committees (including an audit committee) because
of the small size of its Board of Directors. As such, the Company does not have an audit committee or an audit
committee financial expert serving on such committee. As of December 31, 2018, the entire Board of Directors
essentially serve as the Company's audit committee.

Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all of the Company's directors and employees, including
the Company's principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer or persons
performing similar functions. The Company undertakes to provide any person without charge, upon request, a copy
of the Code of Ethics. Requests may be directed to Empire Petroleum Corporation, 1203 East 33rd Street, Suite 250,
Tulsa Oklahoma, 74105, or by calling (539) 444-8002.

- 18 -
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires the Company's directors, executive
officers, and persons who beneficially own more than 10 percent of a registered class of the Company's equity
securities, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of Common Stock and
other equity securities of the Company.

Officers, directors and greater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish the Company
with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to the Company and any written representations that in
other reports were required during the year ended December 31, 2018, to the Company's knowledge, all Section 16(a)
filing requirements applicable to its officers, directors and greater than 10% beneficial owners during the year ended
December 31, 2018 were complied with on a timely basis, except as follows:

Number of Transactions Not

Name Number of Late Reports Reported on a Timely Basis =~ Number of Reports Not Filed
Michael R. Morrisett 1 1 0
Puckett Land Company 2 4 0
EXECUTIVE
ITEM 1. COMPENSATION.

The Board of Directors does not have a Compensation Committee.
Executive Compensation

During 2017, the Company paid Mr. Morrisett $54,700 for services rendered. For the year ended December 31,
2018, the Company paid Mr. Morrisett $156,400 for services rendered. In addition, for the year ended December 31,
2017 but before his appointment as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Pritchard's firm was paid $56,764 for professional
services. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company paid Mr. Pritchard $156,400 and $10,000
respectively, for services rendered as Chief Executive Officer. In November 2017, the Company issued warrants to
management to purchase 1,000,000 shares of common stock of the Company; the warrants were valued at $117,900.

Director Compensation

In November 2017, the Company issued warrants to board members to purchase 3,500,000 shares of common stock of
the Company; the warrants were valued at $354,800.

-19-
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ITEM SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
12. RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had no equity incentive plans under which equity securities were authorized
for issuance to the Company's directors, officers, employees and other persons who performed substantial services for
or on behalf of the Company. At the Company's 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the stockholders approved the
"2006 Stock Incentive Plan", which authorizes granting up to 5,000,000 options for up to 5,000,000 shares of the
Company's Common Stock. The Plan terminated on June 5, 2016 at the end of its contractual life.

The following table provides certain information relating to the 1995 Stock Option Plan and the 2006 Stock Incentive
Plan as of December 31, 2018, adjusted for the 2013 reverse stock split:

(a) (b) (©
Number of securities
remaining available

for future
Number of securities issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of  plans (excluding
outstanding options outstanding options securities reflected
Plan Category and rights and rights in column (a)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders 4,167 $3.12 0
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security
holders N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL 4,167 0

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock as of April 1,
2019 for:

* each person who is known to own beneficially more than 5% of our outstanding Common Stock;
* each of our executive officers and directors; and
* all executive officers and directors as a group.

The percentage of beneficial ownership for the following table is based on 18,792,277 shares of Common Stock
outstanding as of April 1, 2019.

Unless otherwise indicated below, to the Company's knowledge, all persons and entities listed below have sole voting
and investment power over their shares of Common Stock.
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Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

Amount and nature of

Name and address of beneficial owner beneficial ownership Percent of
class (1)

J. C. Whorton, Jr. 1,673,128 8.90%

6657 S. High Drive

Morrison, CO 80465

Puckett Land Company

5460 S. Quebec St., Suite 250 10,000,000 (2) 42.03%

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

James Alan Schoonover 1,000,000 (3) 5239

1770 County Road H2
White Bear Lake, Minnesota 55110

(1) The percentage ownership for each person is calculated in accordance with the rules of the SEC, which provide
that any shares a person is deemed to beneficially own by virtue of having a right to acquire shares upon the
conversion of options or other rights are considered outstanding solely for purposes of calculating such person's
percentage ownership.

(2) The total includes 5,000,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants at $0.15 per share.

(3) The total includes 333,333 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants at $0.15 per share.

Security Ownership of Management

Amount and nature of
Name and address of beneficial owner beneficial ownership Percent of class (1)

Michael R. Morrisett 2,193,128 (2) 11.37%
Director and President

1203 E. 33rd Street, Suite 250

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74105

Anthony Kamin 4,664,304 (3) 20.72%
Director

1203 E. 33rd Street, Suite 250

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74105

Thomas Pritchard

Director and Chief Executive Officer 500,000 (4) 2.59%
1203 E. 33rd Street, Suite 250

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74105

All current directors and executive officers as a group (3 persons) 7,357,432 (5) 31.29%

(1) The percentage ownership for each person is calculated in accordance with the rules of the SEC, which provide
that any shares a person is deemed to beneficially own by virtue of having a right to acquire shares upon the
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conversion of options or other rights are considered outstanding solely for purposes of calculating such person's
percentage ownership.

(2) The total includes 500,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of a warrant at an exercise price of
$0.25 per share.

(3) The total includes 823,333 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of a warrant at $0.15 per share and
2,500,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of a warrant at an exercise price of $0.25 per share. The
total also includes a convertible note in the amount of $40,000 which is convertible at $0.10 per share.

(4) The total includes 500,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of a warrant at $0.25 per share.

(5) The total includes 3,323,333 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants and 400,000 shares
issuable upon conversion of a convertible note.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

Director Independence

Because of the small size of the Company's Board of Directors, the Company has not established any committees.
Rather, the entire Board acts as, and performs the same functions as, the audit committee, compensation committee
and nominating committee, as necessary. Mr. Morrisett is not considered "independent” within the meaning of Rule
5605(a)(2) of the NASDAAQ listing standards.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The following is a summary of the fees billed or to be billed to the Company by HoganTaylor LLP, the Company's
independent registered public accounting firm, for professional services rendered for the fiscal years ended December
31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

Fee Category Fiscal 2018 Fees Fiscal 2017 Fees
Audit Fees (1) $62,500 $32,250

Audit - Related Fees (2) 44,000 0

Tax Fees 0 0

All Other Fees (3) 0 0

Total Fees $106,500 $32,250

(1) Audit Fees consist of aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's
annual financial statements and review of the interim financial statements included in quarterly reports or services that
are normally provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements for the years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

(2) Audit-Related fees consist of aggregate fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to
the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are not reported under "Audit Fees."

(3) All Other Fees consist of aggregate fees billed for products and services provided by HoganTaylor LLP, other
than those disclosed above.

The entire Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of the
work of the independent registered public accounting firm and approves in advance any services to be performed by
the independent registered public accounting firm, whether audit-related or not. The entire Board of Directors reviews
each proposed engagement to determine whether the provision of services is compatible with maintaining the
independence of the independent registered public accounting firm. All of the fees shown above were pre-approved
by the entire Board of Directors.

-22 -
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a) (1) Financial Statements
The financial statements under this item are included in Item 8 of Part II.

(2) Schedules

NONE

(3) Exhibits

Exhibit
No.

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

3.2

33

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

Description

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of July 12, 2018, by and between Exodus Energy, Inc. and Empire
Louisiana LL.C (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company's Form 8-K dated July
13,2018 filed on July 19, 2018).

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of July 23, 2018, by and between Cardinal Exploration and
Production Company and Empire Louisiana LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Company's Form 8-K dated July 23, 2018 filed on July 25, 2018).

Assignment, Bill of Sale and Conveyance by and between Empire Louisiana LLC and Riviera Upstream,
LLC dated October 25, 2018 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company's Form 8-K
dated October 29, 2018 filed on November 2, 2018).

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
the Company's Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 1995, which was filed November 6,
1995).

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to the Company's Form 8-K dated May 31, 2012, which was filed on June 1, 2012).

Bylaws of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company's Form 10-QSB
for the period ended March 31, 1998, which was filed May 15, 1998).

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of August 28, 2018 by and between Empire Petroleum
Corporation and Puckett Land Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Form 8-K dated August 28, 2018 filed on September 4, 2018).

Common Share Warrant Certificate dated as of August 28, 2018 issued by Empire Petroleum Corporation
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K dated August 28, 2018 filed
on September 4, 2018).

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement entered into between Empire Petroleum Corporation and six
accredited investors (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K dated

September 20, 2018 filed on September 25, 2018).

Form of Common Share Warrant Certificate entered into by and between Empire Petroleum Corporation
and six accredited investors (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

31.1

31.2

32.1

322

101
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dated September 20, 2018 filed on September 25, 2018).

1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Appendix A of the Company's Form DEFS
14A dated June 13, 1995, which was filed June 14, 1995).

Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(g) of the Company's
Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 1995, which was filed March 29, 1996).

2006 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to the Company's 2006 Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A dated May 10, 2006).

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006, which was filed on June 9, 2006).

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement for Non-employee Directors (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006, which was filed on June 9,
2006).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006, which was filed on June 9, 2006).

Senior Revolver Loan Agreement dated as of September 20, 2018 by and between Empire Louisiana,
LLC and CrossFirst Bank (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K
dated September 20, 2018 filed on September 25, 2018).

Rule 13a — 14(a)/15d — 14(a) Certification of Thomas Pritchard, Chief Executive Officer (submitted
herewith).

Rule 13a — 14(a)/15d — 14(a) Certification of Michael R. Morrisett, principal financial officer (submitted
herewith).

Section 1350 Certification of Thomas Pritchard, Chief Executive Officer (submitted herewith).
Section 1350 Certification of Michael R. Morrisett, principal financial officer (submitted herewith).

Financial Statements for XBRL format (submitted herewith).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Empire Petroleum Corporation

Date: April 1, 2019 By:/s/ Michael R. Morrisett
Name: Michael R. Morrisett
Title: President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Thomas Pritchard Director and Chief Executive Officer April 1, 2019
THOMAS PRITCHARD

/s/ Michael R. Morrisett Director and President April 1, 2019

MICHAEL R. MORRISETT (principal financial officer)

/s/ Anthony J. Kamin Director April 1, 2019
ANTHONY J. KAMIN
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Description
No. P

3.1

10.1

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of July 12. 2018. by and between Exodus Energy. Inc. and Empire
Louisiana LL.C (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company's Form 8-K dated July
13, 2018 filed on July 19. 2018).

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of July 23. 2018. by and between Cardinal Exploration and
Production Company and Empire Louisiana LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Company's Form 8-K dated July 23. 2018 filed on July 25. 2018).

Assignment. Bill of Sale and Conveyance by and between Empire Louisiana I.L.C and Riviera Upstream.
LLC dated October 25. 2018 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company's Form 8-K
dated October 29, 2018 filed on November 2. 2018).

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
the Company's Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 1995, which was filed November 6,
1995).

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to the Company's Form 8-K dated May 31. 2012, which was filed on June 1. 2012).

Bylaws of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company's Form 10-QSB
for the period ended March 31. 1998. which was filed May 15. 1998).

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of August 28. 2018 by and between Empire Petroleum
Corporation and Puckett L.and Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Form 8-K dated August 28. 2018 filed on September 4. 2018).

Common Share Warrant Certificate dated as of August 28. 2018 issued by Empire Petroleum Corporation
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K dated August 28. 2018 filed
on September 4. 2018).

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement entered into between Empire Petroleum Corporation and six
accredited investors (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K dated
September 20. 2018 filed on September 25. 2018).

Form of Common Share Warrant Certificate entered into by and between Empire Petroleum Corporation
and six accredited investors (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K
dated September 20. 2018 filed on September 25. 2018).

1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Appendix A of the Company's Form DEFS
14A dated June 13, 1995, which was filed June 14, 1995).

Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(g) of the Company's
Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 1995, which was filed March 29, 1996).
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2006 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to the Company's 2006 Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A dated May 10. 2006).

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated June 5. 2006, which was filed on June 9. 2006).

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement for Non-employee Directors (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K dated June 5. 2006. which was filed on June 9.
2006).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated June 5. 2006, which was filed on June 9. 2006).

Senior Revolver Loan Agreement dated as of September 20. 2018 by and between Empire Louisiana.
LLC and CrossFirst Bank (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K
dated September 20. 2018 filed on September 25. 2018).

Rule 13a — 14(a)/15d — 14(a) Certification of Thomas Pritchard. Chief Executive Officer (submitted
herewith).

herewith).

Section 1350 Certification of Thomas Pritchard. Chief Executive Officer (submitted herewith).

Financial Statements for XBRL format (submitted herewith).
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of
Empire Petroleum Corporation

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Empire Petroleum Corporation and subsidiary (the
Company) as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
stockholders' equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements (collectively, the financial statements). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has incurred significant losses since
inception. The Company's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the existence, discovery, and
development of economically recoverable oil and gas reserves and is dependent upon the Company obtaining
necessary financing to carry out its exploration and development program. This raises substantial doubt about the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters also are described in
Note 1. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform,
an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
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/s/ HoganTaylor LLP
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2003.

Tulsa, Oklahoma
April 1, 2019
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EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash

Accounts receivable

Unrealized gain on derivative instruments
Prepaids

Total current assets

Oil and natural gas properties, successful efforts
Less: accumulated depreciation and depletion

Investment in Masterson West 11
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOILDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long term notes payable
Total current liabilities

Long term notes payable
Asset retirement obligations
Total liabilities

Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Common stock - $.001 par value 150,000,000 shares authorized,
17,345,609 and 8,803,942 shares issued and outstanding, respectively

Common stock subscribed not yet issued (0 and

3,225,000 shares at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively)

Stock subscription receivable

Additional paid in capital

Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders' equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

2018 2017
$84,631 $77,780
124,577 0
113,081
45,214 0
367,503 77,780
1,645,297 0
(15,527 ) O
1,629,770 0
0 300,000

$1,997,273  $377,780

$320,749 $64,964

141,033 0
279,204 137,256
740,986 202,220

1,175,820 47,366
230,650 0
2,147,456 249,586

17,345 8,803
0 3,225
0 (5,000 )

16,960,818 16,232,381

(17,128,346) (16,111,215)

(150,183 ) 128,194
$1,997,273  $377,780
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EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Revenue:
Oil and gas sales $352,374 $0
Unrealized gain on derivatives 113,081 0
Total Revenue 465,455 0
Costs and expenses:
Operating 116,288 0
Taxes — production 21,194 0
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 15,527 0
Accretion of asset retirement obligation 1,929 0
General and administrative 1,226,465 757,069

1,381,403 757,069
Operating loss (915,948 ) (757,069 )
Other income and (expense):
Interest expense (101,183 ) (72,998 )
Net loss $(1,017,131) $(830,067 )

Net loss per common

share, basic and diluted $(0.08 ) $(0.08 )
Weighted average number of

common shares outstanding

basic and diluted 13,150,325 10,859,070

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statement
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EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Common Stock Common
Stock
Par Subscribed, Stock Additional
Shares Value not Subscription Paid in Accumulated
yetissued Receivable Capital Deficit Total
Balances December 31,
2016 8,710,609 8,710 2,000 0 15,571,819  (15,281,148) 301,381
Net loss (830,067 ) (830,067)
Shares, options, warrants
and conversion features
issued 93,333 93 1,225 (5,000 ) 660,562 0 656,880
Balances December 31,
2017 8,803,942 $8,803 $ 3,225 $ (5,000 ) $16,232,381 $(16,111,215) $128,194
Net loss (1,017,131 ) (1,017,131)
Termination of Masterson
West (2,000) (298,000 ) (300,000 )
Shares, options, and warrants
issued 8,541,667 8,542 (1,225) 5,000 1,026,437 0 1,038,754
Balances December 31, 2017 17,345,609 $17,345 $0 $0 $16,960,818 $(17,128,346) $(150,183 )
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net

cash used in operating activities:

Fair value of options and warrants granted

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

Amortization of warrant value and conversion feature on convertible notes
Unrealized gain on derivatives

Accretion of asset retirement obligation

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Prepaids

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in oil and gas properties

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long term debt

Proceeds from convertible notes issued
Proceeds from stock issuance

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash
Cash - Beginning of year
Cash - End of year

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid for interest

Noncash investing and financing activities

Common stock subscribed in exchange for investment
Common stock options issued for outstanding payables
Common stock issued for acquisition of property assets
Termination of Masterson West II transaction

Noncash additions to asset retirement obligations

2018

2017

$(1,017,131) $(830,067)

251,255
15,527
69,580
(113,081
1,929

(124,577
(45,214
255,785
141,033
(564,894

(916,575

1,200,820
0

287,500
1,488,320

6,851
77,780

$84,631

$12,703

$0
$0
$500,000
$300,000
$228,721

472,700
0
60,064
0

0

0

14,000
47,340

0
(235,963)

0

127,500
117,500
245,000

9,037
68,743

$77,780

$0

$5,000
$4,894
$0
$0
$0
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2017

General:

On July 20, 2001, Americomm Resources Corporation merged with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Empire Petroleum
Corporation, and simultaneously changed the name of the corporation to Empire Petroleum Corporation . Both the
merger and name change were effective as of August 15, 2001. Americomm Resources Corporation was originally
incorporated in the State of Utah on the 22nd day of August 1983, as Chambers Energy Corporation. On the 7th day
of March 1985, the state of incorporation was changed to Delaware by means of a merger with Americomm
Corporation, a Delaware corporation formed for the purpose of effecting the said change. In July 1995, its name was
changed to Americomm Resources Corporation. Empire Petroleum Corporation has two wholly owned subsidiaries,
Empire Louisiana, LL.C and Empire North Dakota, LLC. Empire Petroleum Corporation and subsidiaries ("Empire" or
the "Company"). consolidate the financial statements of these entities and material intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated. Empire North Dakota was formed in late 2018 and had no assets, liabilities or
activity as of December 31, 2018.

1. Continuing operations:

The ultimate recoverability of the Company's investment in its oil and gas interests is dependent upon the existence,
discovery, and development of economically recoverable oil and gas reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain
necessary financing to further develop the interests, and upon the ability to attain future profitable production. The
Company has been incurring significant losses in recent years and future financing is uncertain. These factors indicate
that there is a substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The continuation of the Company is dependent upon the ability of the Company to raise capital and attain future
profitable operations. These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of United States generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to a company with continuing operations, which assume that the Company will
continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its obligations in the
normal course of operations. These financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary to the
carrying value of assets and liabilities, reported expenses and the balance sheet classifications used should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

2. Significant accounting policies:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(a) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of the Company and its 100 percent
owned subsidiary. The Company consolidates the financial statements of these entities. All material intercompany

balances and transactions have been eliminated.

(b) Accounts receivable
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The Company sells oil and natural gas to various customers. The receivables related to these operations are generally
unsecured. Receivables are considered past due if full payment is not received by the contractual due date. Past due
accounts are generally written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts only after all collection attempts have
been exhausted. The Company did not have an allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

(c) Oil and natural gas properties
The Company uses the successful efforts method of accounting for its oil and gas activities. Costs incurred are
deferred until exploration and completion results are evaluated. At such time, costs of activities with economically

recoverable reserves are capitalized as proven properties, and costs of unsuccessful or uneconomical activities are
expensed.

-32 .
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Capitalized drilling costs are reviewed periodically for impairment. Costs related to impaired prospects or
unsuccessful exploratory drilling is charged to expense. Management's assessment of the results of exploration
activities, commodity price outlooks, planned future sales or expiration of all or a portion of such leaseholds impact
the amount and timing of impairment provisions. An impairment expense could result if oil and gas prices decline in
the future as it may not be economical to develop some of these unproved properties.

Lease options are capitalized as unproved property acquisition costs and are reviewed for impairment if indicators
exist that the carrying value of the lease option may not be recoverable. If the lease options become impaired, expire
or are abandoned, the options will be expensed. If proved reserves are discovered after the options are exercised,
these costs will be reclassified as proved property.

(d) Derivative instruments

The Company enters into swap agreements to manage its exposure to oil and natural gas price fluctuations. The
unrealized gain or loss on these agreements are recognized as an asset or liability on the Company's balance sheet.
Realized gain or loss is recognized as a component of revenue when the swap contracts mature. For contracts which
have not matured an unrealized gain or loss is recorded based on the value of the outstanding contracts.

(e) Equity method investments:

Companies in which Empire owns a 20% to 50% interest, but does not have a controlling interest, are accounted for
by the equity method. The Company owned a 50% non-controlling interest in Masterson West Il as of December 31,
2017. Masterson West II was accounted for under the equity method and was not required to be consolidated in the
financial statements. The carrying value of the Company's investment in Masterson West II is reflected in the Balance
Sheets as Investment in Masterson West II. For more information about the investment in Masterson West II and the
summarized Masterson West II balance sheet, refer to Note 4.

(f) Asset retirement obligations

The Company records the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred
and a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related oil and natural gas property asset. Subsequently,
the asset retirement cost included in the carrying amount of the related asset is allocated to expense through depletion
of the asset. Changes in the liability due to passage of time are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the
liability through accretion expense. Based on certain factors, including commodity prices and costs, the Company may
revise its previous estimates of the liability, which would also increase or decrease the related oil and natural gas
property asset.

(g) Revenue recognition

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted ASC Topic 606, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers," ("ASC 606")
using the modified retrospective approach, which only applies to contracts that were not completed as of the date of
initial application. The adoption did not require an adjustment to opening retained earnings for the cumulative effect
adjustment and does not have a material impact on the Company's reported net income (loss), cash flows from
operations or statement of stockholders' equity.

The Company enters into contracts with customers to sell its oil and natural gas production. Revenue on these
contracts is recognized in accordance with the five-step revenue recognition model prescribed in ASC 606.
Specifically, revenue is recognized when the Company's performance obligations under these contracts are satisfied,
which generally occurs with the transfer of control of the oil and natural gas to the purchaser. Control is generally
considered transferred when the following criteria are met: (i) transfer of physical custody, (ii) transfer of title, (iii)
transfer of risk of loss and (iv) relinquishment of any repurchase rights or other similar rights. Given the nature of the
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products sold, revenue is recognized at a point in time based on the amount of consideration the Company expects to
receive in accordance with the price specified in the contract. Consideration under the oil and natural gas marketing
contracts is typically received from the purchaser one to two months after production. The Company's oil and natural
gas marketing contracts transfer physical custody and title at or near the wellhead, which is generally when control of
the oil has been transferred to the purchaser. All of the Company's oil and natural gas production is sold to a single
customer for each commodity. While the loss of these customers may result in a temporary interruption in sales, since
there are alternative purchasers these risks are mitigated.

The majority of the Company's natural gas is sold at the lease location, which is generally when control of the natural
gas has been transferred to the purchaser. The Company follows the sales method of accounting for natural gas sales,

recognizing revenue based on the Company's actual proceeds from the natural gas sold to purchasers.
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(h) Per share amounts:

The Company calculates and discloses basic earnings per share ("Basic EPS") and diluted earnings per share ("Diluted
EPS"). The computation of basic earnings per share is computed by dividing earnings available to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of outstanding common shares during the period.

Diluted Earnings per Share ("EPS") gives effect to all dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period.
The computation of Diluted EPS does not assume conversion, exercise or contingent exercise of securities that would
have an anti-dilutive effect on losses. As a result, if there is a loss from continuing operations, Diluted EPS is
computed in the same manner as Basic EPS. At December 31, 2017 and 2018, the Company had 8,775,167 and
17,524,169 options and warrants outstanding, respectively, that were not included in the calculation of earnings per
share for the periods then ended. Such financial instruments may become dilutive and would then need to be included
in future calculations of Diluted EPS. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the outstanding options were considered
anti-dilutive since the strike prices were above the market price and since the Company has incurred losses year to
date.

(1) Income taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the asset and liability method of accounting for income
taxes. Under the asset and liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to the taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is established if management
determines it is more likely than not that some portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

(j) Financial instruments:

The carrying value of current assets and current liabilities approximate their fair value due to the relatively short
period to maturity of the instruments. The carrying value of the convertible debt also approximates its fair value as of
December 31, 2018. Management's estimates are based on an assessment of qualitative factors that are considered
level 3 measurements in the fair value valuation hierarchy required by FASB ASC 820.

(k) Stock option plan:
The Company expenses options granted over the vesting period based on the grant date fair value of the award.
(1) Recently issued accounting pronouncements:

FASB periodically issues new accounting standards in a continuing effort to improve standards of financial
accounting and reporting. The Company has reviewed the recently issued pronouncements and concluded that the
following new accounting standards are applicable:

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02: "Leases (Topic 842)" which is intended to improve financial
reporting about leasing transactions. This ASU will require organizations ("lessees") that lease assets with lease terms
of more than twelve months to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations
created by those leases. Organizations that own the assets leased by lessees ("lessors") will remain largely unchanged
from current GAAP. In addition, this ASU will require disclosures to help investors and other financial statement
users better understand the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The guidance is
effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and early adoption is permitted. Based on
management's initial assessment, ASU No. 2016-02 will not have a material impact on the Company's financial
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statements. The Company is a lessee on office leases; however, since the lease is on a month to month basis it would
not record a right of use asset or liability.

In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-09, "Codification Improvements," ("ASU 2018-09") which makes
amendments to multiple codification topics to clarify, correct errors in, or make minor improvements to the
accounting standards codification. The effective date of the standard is dependent on the facts and circumstances of
each amendment. Some amendments do not require transition guidance and will be effective upon the issuance of this
standard. Many of the amendments in ASU 2018-09 will be effective in annual periods beginning after December 15,
2018. The Company will be required to adopt this standard in the first quarter of fiscal 2019. Management has
reviewed the new standard in conjunction with its current practices and believes that it will not have a material impact
on the financial statements.
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In November 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-18, "Collaborative Arrangements (Topic 808): Clarifying the
Interaction between Topic 808 and Topic 606," ("ASU 2018-18") which, among other things, clarifies that (i) certain
transactions between collaborative arrangement participants should be accounted for as revenue under Topic 606
when the collaborative arrangement participant is a customer in the context of a unit of account, (ii) adds
unit-of-account guidance in Topic 808 to align with the guidance in Topic 606 and (iii) requires that in a transaction
with a collaborative arrangement participant that is not directly related to sales to third parties, presenting the
transaction together with revenue recognized under Topic 606 is precluded if the collaborative arrangement participant
is not a customer. ASU 2018-18 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods
within those fiscal years and early adoption is permitted. The amendments in this update should be applied
retrospectively to the date of initial application of Topic 606. An entity should recognize the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings of the later of the
earliest annual period presented and the annual period that includes the date of the entity's initial application of Topic
606. The Company is currently assessing the effect that ASU 2018-18 will have on its financial position, results of
operations and disclosures. Management has reviewed the new standard in conjunction with its current practices and
believes that it will not have a material impact on the financial statements.

3. Property:

In 2018, the Company, through its subsidiary, Empire Louisiana, LLC, purchased oil and natural gas properties in St.
Landry and Beauregard parishes in Louisiana (see Footnote 5).

The aggregate capitalized costs of oil and natural gas properties as of December 31, 2018 are as follows:

2018
Proved producing wells $584.,461
Proved undeveloped 547,882
Lease and well equipment 284,233
Asset retirement obligation 228,721
Gross capitalized costs 1,645,297

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization (15,527 )

Net capitalized costs $1,629,770

4. Investment in Masterson West II, LLC

On December 22, 2016, the Company entered into a subscription and contribution agreement with Masterson West,
LLC ("Masterson West") (the "Contribution Agreement") relating to the newly formed Masterson West II, LLC, a
Texas limited liability company ("Masterson West II"). Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, among other things,
(a) at the initial closing, the Company agreed to contribute 2,000,000 shares of its common stock, par value $0.001 per
share (the "Common Stock"), to Masterson West II, along with an additional 38,000,000 shares of Common Stock and
(b) at the final closing, Masterson West had an obligation to contribute certain oil and gas properties (the "Contributed
Properties") to Masterson West II in exchange for the Company contributing cash of not less than $9,000,000 and up
to $18,000,000 to Masterson West II. The final closing was scheduled to occur no later than April 1, 2017. Also on
December 22, 2016, the Company entered into a limited liability agreement of Masterson West II with Masterson
West (the "LLC Agreement"). On February 18, 2017, Gary C. Adams, the majority owner of Masterson West
unexpectedly passed away. As a result of this development, the transactions were not consummated. On December 1,
2018, the Company and Masterson West agreed to terminate and unwind the Contribution Agreement in a manner as
if the parties had never entered into the Contribution Agreement. As a result of the Termination Agreement, in 2018
the Company has reversed its $300,000 investment in Masterson West II and the related common stock subscription
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On February 18, 2017, the majority owner of Masterson West, Gary C. Adams, unexpectedly passed away. Asa
result of this development, the final closing did not occur on April 1, 2017, the final close date per the Contribution
Agreement.

On December 1, 2018, the Company and Masterson West agreed to terminate and unwind the Contribution
Agreement in a manner as if the parties had never entered into the Contribution Agreement. As specified in the
Termination Agreement, in 2018 the Company has reversed its $300,000 investment in Masterson West II and the
related common stock subscription and paid in capital.

5. Acquisitions of oil and gas properties

Cardinal Acquisition

On August 28, 2018, the Company purchased oil producing properties from Cardinal Exploration and Production
Company ("Cardinal") for a purchase price of $323,000. The effective date of the transaction was June 1, 2018. After
certain adjustments related to the effective date, the total proceeds paid to Cardinal were $293,966. Such proceeds
were paid from sales of unregistered securities of the Company.

The oil and gas properties purchased from Cardinal include four active operated wells in Louisiana, including one
saltwater disposal well. Empire's working interests in the wells are 100%.

Exodus Acquisition

On September 20, 2018, the Company purchased oil and natural gas properties from Exodus Energy, Inc. ("Exodus")
for a purchase price of $969,042. Post close adjustments reduced the purchase price to $959,338. The effective date
of the transaction was August 1, 2018. Such proceeds were paid from loan proceeds and sales of unregistered
securities.

The oil and gas properties include 1,500 gross developed and undeveloped acres and eight wells currently producing

approximately 135 barrels of oil equivalent (BOE) per day. The Company's working interests in the wells range from
50% to 90%.

Riviera Upstream Acquisition

On October 29, 2018, the Company purchased oil and natural gas properties from Riviera Upstream, LLC formerly
known as Linn Energy Holdings, LLC ("Riviera") for a purchase price of $205,000. Post close adjustments reduced
the total purchase price to $163,273. The effective date of the transaction was October 1, 2018.

The oil and gas properties purchased included non-operated working interest in four producing wells and two salt
water disposal wells in which the Company already owned and operated interest.

BOE Per Day

All of the Company's producing properties are located in Louisiana and, as of December 31, 2018, such properties
were producing approximately 100 net barrels of oil equivalent (BOE) per day.

The following table sets forth the Company's preliminary purchase price allocations:
Cardinal Exodus Riviera

Fair Value of Assets Acquired

Accounts receivable 57,061 143,807 50,335
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Oil and natural gas properties (a) 377,747 1,059,296 208,254

Total Assets Acquired $434,808 1,203,103 258,589
Fair Value of liabilities Assumed

Accounts payable — trade 28,026 134,104 8,607
Asset retirement obligations 83,782 99,957 44,982
Total Liabilities Assumed $111,808 234,061 53,589

(a) The Cardinal acquisition was of oil producing properties only.
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The fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were based on the following key inputs:
Oil and natural gas properties

The fair value of proved oil and natural gas properties was measured using valuation techniques that convert the future
cash flows to a single discounted amount. Significant inputs to the valuation of proved oil and natural gas properties
include estimates of: (i) recoverable reserves; (ii) production rates; (iii) future operating and development costs; (iv)
future commodity prices; and (v) a market-based weighted average costs of capital. The Company utilized a
combination of the New York Mercantile Exchange ("NYMEX") strip pricing and consensus pricing to value the
reserves, then applied various discount rates depending on the classification of reserves and other risk characteristics.
Management utilized the assistance of a third-party valuation expert to estimate the value of the oil and natural gas
properties acquired.

The fair value of asset retirement obligations are included in proved oil and natural gas properties with a
corresponding liability in the table above. The fair value was determined based on a discounted cash flow model,
which included assumptions of the estimated current abandonment costs, discount rate, inflation rate and timing
associated with the incurrence of these costs.

The inputs used to value oil and natural gas properties and asset retirement obligations require significant judgment
and estimates made by management and represent Level 3 inputs.

Financial instruments and other

The fair values determined for accounts receivable and accounts payable — trade were equivalent to the carrying value
due to their short-term nature.

Accounts payable - trade includes liabilities primarily related to well activity prior to close.

The unaudited financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of operations of the
Company, the Exodus assets acquired, the Cardinal assets acquired, and the Riviera assets acquired for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 on a pro forma basis, as though the companies had been combined as of January
1, 2017. The unaudited pro forma earnings for the years ending December 31, 2018 and 2017 were adjusted to
include $19,300 and $34,803 of depreciation, depletion, and amortization, respectively. Incremental interest expense
of $29,498 and $58,997 was included for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as if the Senior
Revolver Loan Agreement used to help fund the acquisition had been entered into on January 1, 2017. Earnings per
share were adjusted to include the additional 1,978,810 shares of the Company's common stock issued to help fund
the acquisitions as if those shares had been issued on January 1, 2017. The unaudited pro forma information is
provided for informational purposes only and does not purport to be indicative of the Company's combined results of
operations which would actually have been obtained had the acquisitions taken place on January 1, 2017, nor should it
be taken as indicative of the Company's future consolidated results of operations.

For the year ended
December 31,
2018 2017
Oil and gas sales $952,121 $1,059,992
Net loss (899,100) (789,852 )

Earnings per share, basic and diluted $(0.06 ) $(0.05 )

67



-37 -

Edgar Filing: EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORP - Form 10-K

68



Edgar Filing: EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORP - Form 10-K

6. Asset retirement obligations

The Company's asset retirement obligations represent the estimated present value of the estimated cash flows the
Company will incur to plug, abandon and remediate its producing properties at the end of their productive lives, in
accordance with applicable state laws. Market risk premiums associated with asset retirement obligations are
estimated to represent a component of the Company's credit-adjusted risk-free rate that is utilized in the calculations of
asset retirement obligations.

The Company's asset retirement obligation transactions during the years ended December 31, 2018 are summarized in
the table below. There were no asset retirement obligations in 2017.

For the
year ended
December
31,2018

Asset retirement obligations, beginning of period $0

Liabilities assumed in acquisitions 228,721
Accretion expense 1,929
Asset retirement obligation, end of period $230,650

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to commodity price fluctuations.
Commodity derivative instruments are used to reduce the effect of volatility of price changes on the oil and gas the
Company produces and sells. The Company's derivative financial instruments consist of oil and natural gas swaps.

The Company does not enter into derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

The Company does not designate its derivative instruments to qualify for hedge accounting. Accordingly, the
Company reflects changes in the fair value of its derivative instruments in its consolidated statements of operations as
they occur. Unrealized gains and losses related to the swap contracts are recognized and recorded as an asset or
liability on the Company's balance sheet.

The following table summarized the amounts reported in earnings, as a component of operating expenses, related to
the commodity derivative instruments for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

As of
December 31,
2018 2017
Gain (loss) on derivatives:
Oil derivatives 125,902 —
Natural gas derivatives (8,105 ) —
Total 117,797 —

The following represents the Company's net cash receipts from (payments on) derivatives for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017:

As of
December 31,
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2018 2017
Net cash receipts from (payments on) derivatives:
Oil derivatives 16,629 —
Natural gas derivatives (11,913) —
Total 4,716 —

The following table sets forth the Company's outstanding derivative contracts at December 31, 2018. All of the
Company's derivatives are expected to settle by October 31, 2019:

First Second Third Fourth
quarter quarter quarter quarter

Oil Swaps:

Volume (Bbl) 1,767 1,767 1,767 589
Price per Bbl $65.85 $65.85 $65.85 $65.85
Natural Gas Swaps:

Volume (Bbl) 1,138 1,138 1,138 —
Price per Bbl $2.875 $2.875 $2.875 —
Total

-38 -




Edgar Filing: EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORP - Form 10-K
8. Notes Payable

In July and August, 2018, the Company entered into two unsecured note agreements totaling $25,000 with Mr.
Anthony Kamin, who is also a member of the Company's Board of Directors. The notes are payable on demand and
accrue interest at 8% interest. Both notes are outstanding at December 31, 2018.

On September 20, 2018 the Company entered into a Senior Revolver Loan Agreement ("the Agreement") with
CrossFirst Bank ("CrossFirst"). The initial revolver commitment amount is $1,350,000 and the maximum amount that
can be advanced under the Agreement is $5,000,000 and includes interest at Wall Street Journal Prime plus 150 basis
points (7% as of December 31, 2018). The Agreement matures on September 20, 2020. Collateral for the loan is a lien
on all of the assets of the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Empire Louisiana, and a first priority mortgage lien,
pledge of and security interest in not less than 80% of Empire Louisiana's producing oil, gas and other leasehold and
mineral interests in Louisiana. The Agreement requires Empire Louisiana, beginning December 31, 2018 to maintain
certain covenants including an EBITDAX to interest expense of at least 3:1 and funded debt to EBITDAX of 4:1 on a
trailing twelve month basis. As of December 31, 2018, the Company has $1,175,820 outstanding under the Agreement
(See Note 17). The Company was not in compliance with certain financial covenants at December 31, 2018. As a
part of the First Amendment to the Agreement in conjunction with the Energy Quest II, LLC acquisition (Note 17),
the covenants were modified on a retrospective basis.

9. Senior Unsecured Convertible Promissory Notes

In December 2016, the Company entered into securities purchase agreements (each, a "Securities Purchase
Agreement" and, collectively, the "Securities Purchase Agreements") with four accredited investors, pursuant to
which it issued senior unsecured convertible promissory notes due December 31, 2018 (each, a "Convertible Note"
and, collectively, the "Convertible Notes") in the aggregate amount of $132,500 in cash. Each Convertible Note
accrues interest at 6%, is due December 31, 2018 and is convertible at the option of the holder at $0.15 per share.
Each investor was also issued a warrant certificate (each, a "Warrant Certificate" and, collectively, the "Warrant
Certificates"), pursuant to which such investor could acquire one share of Common Stock at $0.25 per share for each
$0.25 invested in the applicable Convertible Note until December 31, 2018. The full amount interest under each
Convertible Note is accrued and paid upon the maturity date or earlier conversion.

The value allocated to the Warrant Certificates was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation
with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 112%, risk free interest rate of 0.91%
and an expected useful life of two years, The fair value of the Warrant Certificates was allocated $38,115 to Paid in
Capital and $38,115 as Debt Issue Costs. The Notes' conversion features were valued at their intrinsic value in excess
of the debt's allocated value of $38,115 and resulted in additional Paid in Capital and Debt Issue Costs. The Debt Issue
Costs represent a direct deduction of the face amount the Convertible Notes is amortized as interest expense over the
life of the Notes.

In January 2017, the Company entered into securities purchase agreements (each, a "Securities Purchase Agreement"
and, collectively, the "Securities Purchase Agreements") with two accredited investors, pursuant to which it issued
senior unsecured convertible promissory notes due December 31, 2018 (each, a "Convertible Note" and, collectively,
the "Convertible Notes") in the aggregate amount of $62,500 in cash. Each Convertible Note accrues interest at 6%, is
due December 31, 2018 and is convertible at the option of the holder at $0.15 per share. Each investor was also issued
a warrant certificate (each, a "Warrant Certificate" and, collectively, the "Warrant Certificates"), pursuant to which
such investor could acquire one share of Common Stock at $0.25 per share for each $0.25 invested in the applicable
Convertible Note until December 31, 2018. The full amount of interest under each Convertible Note is accrued and
paid upon the maturity date or earlier conversion.

The value allocated to the Warrant Certificates was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation
with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 110%, risk free interest rate of 1.23%
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and an expected useful life of two years. The fair value of the Warrant Certificates was allocated $16,975 to Paid in
Capital. The Notes' conversion features were valued at their intrinsic value in excess of the debt's allocated value of
$16,975 and resulted in additional Paid in Capital. The Debt Issue Costs represent a direct deduction of the face
amount the Convertible Notes and is amortized as interest expense over the life of the Notes.

In September and October 2017, the Company entered into securities purchase agreements (each, a "Securities
Purchase Agreement" and, collectively, the "Securities Purchase Agreements") with two accredited investors, pursuant
to which it issued senior unsecured convertible promissory notes due December 31, 2019 (each, a "Convertible Note"
and, collectively, the "Convertible Notes") in the aggregate amount of $65,000 in cash. Each Convertible Note
accrues interest at 6%, is due December 31, 2019 and is convertible at the option of the holder at $0.15 per share.
Each investor was also issued a warrant certificate (each, a "Warrant Certificate" and, collectively, the "Warrant
Certificates"), pursuant to which such investor could acquire one share of Common Stock at $0.25 per share for each
$0.25 invested in the applicable Convertible Note until December 31, 2019. The full amount of interest under each
Convertible Note is accrued and paid upon the maturity date or earlier conversion. The value allocated to the
September Warrant Certificates was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation with the
following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 154%, risk free interest rate of 1.35% and an
expected useful life of 28 months. The value allocated to the October Warrant Certificates was the fair value
determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected
annual volatility of 180%), risk free interest rate of 1.51% and an expected useful life of 27 months. The fair value of
the Warrant Certificates of $13,918 was allocated to Paid in Capital. The Notes' conversion features were valued at
their intrinsic value in excess of the debt's allocated value of $13,918 and resulted in additional Paid in Capital. The
Debt Issue Costs represent a direct deduction of the face amount the Convertible Notes and is amortized as interest
expense over the life of the Notes.
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On December 31, 2018 the Company and investors for all of the Senior Unsecured Convertible Promissory Notes
entered into amended agreements whereby the maturity dates for the notes maturing December 31, 2018 were
extended to December 31, 2019, the conversion feature of the notes was modified from $0.15 per share of common
stock to $0.10 per share. Additionally, the Warrant Certificates to purchase shares of common stock of the Company,
which were issued as a part of the original agreements, were repriced from $0.25 per share to $0.15 per share. The
value allocated to the Warrant Certificates modification was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option
valuation with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 167%, risk free interest
rate of 2.63% and an expected useful life of 12 months. The change in fair value of the Warrant Certificates as a result
of the modifications of $139,985 was allocated to Paid in Capital and included as an expense in 2018. The Notes
conversion features were equivalent to their intrinsic value at the date of modification. The remaining Debt Issue
Costs from the original notes which matured at December 31, 2019 of $5,798 will be amortized as interest expense
over the remaining life of the Notes.

The following table reflects the changes in long term debt during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively:

2018 2017
Current  Total
Convertible Notes Outstanding $260,000 $260,000 $260,000

Debt Issue Costs — Warrants and Conversion Feature (5,796 ) (5,796 ) (75,378)
Convertible Notes Outstanding, Net $254.204 $254,204 $184,622
10. Capital Stock:

During December 2016, the Company issued $132,500 of senior unsecured convertible promissory notes
("Convertible Notes") due December 31, 2018 to several accredited investors, See Note 5. The Convertible Notes, as
modified, are convertible at the option of the holder into Common Stock at $0.10 per share. Each investor was also
issued a warrant certificate, pursuant to which such investor could acquire one share of Common Stock at $0.15 per
share for each $0.15 invested in the applicable Convertible Note until December 31, 2019.

During January 2017 the Company issued $62,500 of senior unsecured convertible promissory notes ("Convertible
Notes") due December 31, 2018 to several accredited investors, See Note 5. The Convertible Notes, as modified, are
convertible at the option of the holder into Common Stock at $0.10 per share. Each investor was also issued a warrant
certificate, pursuant to which such investor could acquire one share of Common Stock at $0.15 per share for each
$0.15 invested in the applicable Convertible Note until December 31, 2019.

On July 25, 2017 the Company issued 93,333 shares of its common stock and warrants to purchase 56,000 shares of
its common stock for $.25 per share which expires on December 31, 2018 to an investment banking service firm in
return for past and future services. The Common Stock was valued at $4,200 which represents the market price of 4.5
cents per share on the date of issuance. The value allocated to the warrants was the fair value determined using the
Black-Scholes option valuation with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of
145%, risk free interest rate of 1.32% and an expected useful life of 17 months. The fair value of the warrants of $694
was allocated to Paid in Capital.

During September and October 2017, the Company issued $65,000 of senior unsecured convertible promissory notes
("Convertible Notes") due December 31, 2019 to two accredited investors, See Note 5. The Convertible Notes, as
modified, are convertible at the option of the holder into Common Stock at $0.10 per share. Each investor was also
issued a warrant certificate, pursuant to which such investor could acquire one share of Common Stock at $0.15 per
share for each $0.15 invested in the applicable Convertible Note until December 31, 2019.
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During November 2017 the Company issued warrants to purchase 4,000,000 shares of its common stock for $.25 per
share and $.15 per share which expires on December 31, 2021 to several Board members and management. The value
allocated to the warrants was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation with the following
assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 179%, risk free interest rate of 1.98% and an expected
useful life of 49 months. The fair value of the warrants of $472,700 was recorded as compensation expense and
allocated to Paid in Capital.
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During December 2017 the Company issued 1,225,000 shares of its common stock and warrants to purchase
1,225,000 shares of its common stock for $.10 per share which expires on December 31, 2019 to several accredited
investors. The value allocated to the warrants was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation
with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 179%, risk free interest rate of 1.78%
and an expected useful life of 25 months. The fair value of the warrants of $121,275 was allocated to Paid in Capital.

During January 2018 the Company issued to several accredited investors 1,100,000 shares of its common stock and
warrants to purchase 1,100,000 shares of its common stock for $.15 per share which expires on December 31, 2019.
The value allocated to the warrants was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation with the
following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 185%, risk free interest rate of 2.05% and an
expected useful life of 24 months. The fair value of the warrants of $108,900 was allocated to Paid in Capital.

During March 2018 the Company issued to an accredited investor 100,000 shares of its common stock and warrants to
purchase 100,000 shares of its common stock for $.15 per share which expires on December 31, 2019. The value
allocated to the warrants was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation with the following
assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 179%, risk free interest rate of 2.22% and an expected
useful life of 22 months. The fair value of the warrants of $9,900 was allocated to Paid in Capital.

During June 2018 the Company issued warrants to purchase 645,000 shares of its common stock for $.25 per share
which expire on December 31, 2019 to several professionals for business assistance provided. The value allocated to
the warrants was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation with the following assumptions:
no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 174%, risk free interest rate of 2.38% and an expected useful life of 19
months. The fair value of the warrants of $117,068 was recorded as compensation expense and allocated to Paid in
Capital.

During June 2018 the Company issued to an accredited investor 100,000 shares of its common stock and warrants to
purchase 100,000 shares of its common stock for $.15 per share which expires on December 31, 2019. The value
allocated to the warrants was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation with the following
assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 197%, risk free interest rate of 2.43% and an expected
useful life of 18 months. The fair value of the warrants of $9,900 was allocated to Paid in Capital.

During August and September 2018, the Company issued to a group of accredited investors 1,016,667 shares of its
common stock and warrants to purchase 1,16,667 shares of its common stock for $.25 per share which expires on
December 31, 2019. The value allocated to the warrants was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option
valuation with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 210%, risk free interest
rate of 2.49% and an expected useful life of 15 months. The fair value of the warrants of $150,833 was allocated to
Paid in Capital.

During August and September 2018, the Company issued to an accredited investor 5,000,000 shares of its common
stock and warrants to purchase 5,000,000 shares of its common stock for $.15 per share which expires on December
31, 2020. The value allocated to the warrants was the fair value determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation
with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected annual volatility of 189%, risk free interest rate of 2.71%
and an expected useful life of 27 months. The fair value of the warrants of $495,000 was allocated to Paid in Capital.
Proceeds from the issuance were utilized for a portion of the Cardinal and Exodus acquisitions (See Note 5).

11. Stock Options:

At the Company's 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the stockholders approved the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan
(the "Plan"). The Plan permits the issuance of stock options, restricted stock awards, and performance shares to

employees, officers, directors, and consultants of the Company. Initially, and until such time as the Board creates a
Compensation Committee, the Board of Directors will administer the Plan. The total number of shares of common
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stock that may be issued pursuant to awards under the Plan is 5,000,000. Under the Plan, no participant may receive
awards of stock options that cover, in the aggregate, more than 500,000 shares of common stock in any fiscal year.
Under the terms of the Plan, no additional options could be granted after the tenth anniversary of the Plan, which
occurred on June 5, 2016.

The Company expenses the cost of options granted over the vesting period of the option based on the grant-date fair
value of the award. Option fair values are estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option valuation

model. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. For purposes of determining the expected life of
the options, the Company utilizes the Simplified Method as defined in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission. In addition, the Black-Scholes option valuation model requires the input of
other highly subjective assumptions including stock price volatility.
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A summary of the Company's Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2018 and changes during the year is presented
below:

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Options Price
Outstanding at End of Year 2016 1,154,167 $ .21
Granted 0 $

Cancelled or Exercised 0 $

Outstanding at End of Year 2017 1,154,167 $ 0.21

Granted 0
Expired 1,150,000 21
Outstanding at End of Year 2018 4,167 3.12

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2018:

Options Outstanding ~ Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average  Weighted Weighted
Range of Number =~ Remaining Average Number  Average
Exercise Outstanding Contractual Exercise ExercisableExercise
Prices  at 12/31/18 Life Price at 12/31/17 Price

$3.12 4,167 1.69 years $3.12 4,167 $3.12

12. Income Taxes:

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount obtained by applying the applicable Federal income tax rate
of 21% and 34% at year ends 2018 and 2017, respectively to income before income taxes. The difference relates to the
following items:

2018 2017
Statutory tax rate 21% 34%
Expected tax benefit $(214,000) $(280,000)
Nondeductible expenses 0 0
Increase in valuation allowance 214,000 280,000
Tax provision (benefit) as reported $0 $0
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The components of deferred income taxes at December 31, are as follows:

2018 2017
Deferred tax assets:
Loss carry-forwards $2,278,000 $2,065,000
Valuation allowance (2,278,000) (2,065,000)

Net deferred taxes  $0 $0
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At December 31, 2018, the Company has accumulated net operating loss carryforwards totaling approximately
$10,800,000 which begin to expire if not utilized starting in 2018.

On December 22, 2017 H.R. 1, originally known as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, (the "Tax Act") was enacted. Among
the significant changes to the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, the Tax Act lowers the U.S. federal corporate income tax
rate ("Federal Tax Rate") from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018. The Company must re-measure its net
deferred tax assets and liabilities using the Federal Tax Rate that will apply when these amounts are expected to
reverse. Accordingly, the Company utilized a 21% tax rate to evaluate its net deferred taxes for the periods ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Utilization of the Company's loss carryforwards is dependent on realizing taxable income. Deferred tax assets for
these carryforwards have been reduced by a valuation allowance up to an amount equal to estimated deferred tax
liability.

The Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2014. The Company
is not currently the subject of any income tax examinations by any tax authorities.

Based upon a review of its income tax filing positions, the Company believes that its positions would be sustained
upon an audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a material change to its financial position.
Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax positions have been recorded. The Company recognizes interest
related to income taxes as interest expense and penalties as operating expenses.

13. Oil and Natural Gas Sale Revenue:

The Company records revenue from petroleum and natural gas sales when received from the operator of the well.
Sales are reported net of working interest and overriding royalty amounts due.

14. Operating Lease:

Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $11,317. The Company incurred $4,650 of rent expense in
2017. The Company leases office space in Tulsa, Oklahoma for $1,667 per month under a lease agreement which
expires October 31,2019. The Company also subleases office space from a related party in Lafayette, Louisiana for
$675 month; that lease expires May 31, 2019. Lease rental payments required for both leases in 2019 are $20,042.

15. Related Party Transactions:

On November 28, 2017, the Company named Thomas Pritchard as Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Pritchard is the co-founder/ partner for Pritchard Griffin Advisors and the Managing Director of Pritchard Energy
Adpvisors. Both of the companies have provided services to the Company, primarily related to raising capital and
locating oil & gas investments. In 2018 and 2017, the Company paid Pritchard Griffin Advisors $24,200 and $56,764
respectively, for consulting services.

16. Concentrations

The Company's producing properties and oil and natural gas reserves are all located in St. Landry and Beauregard
parishes in Louisiana. Because of the concentration, the Company is exposed to the impact of regional supply and
demand factors, processing or transportation capacity constraints, severe weather events, water shortages, and
government regulations specific to the geographic area.

The Company sells all of its oil and natural gas production to Katrina Energy, LLC and Cokinos Natural Gas
Corporation respectively. The loss of these purchasers could result in a temporary interruption in sales or a lower
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price for production.
17. Subsequent Events:

On February 15, 2019 the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Empire North Dakota, LLC, entered into a
Purchase and Sale Agreement ("the Agreement") with Energy Quest II, LLC to purchase certain oil and natural gas
properties in Montana and North Dakota comprising 20,700 net acres with 183 active wells producing approximately
355 net barrels of oil per day. The purchase price was $5,600,000, subject to adjustments with an effective date of
January 1, 2019 and a closing date of March 22, 2019. The transaction closed on March 27, 2019. After certain
adjustments, the total purchase price paid was $5,185,383.

_43 -

80



Edgar Filing: EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORP - Form 10-K

On February 27,2019 the Company entered into promissory notes with four accredited investors in the cumulative
amount of $90,000. The notes have an interest rate of 8% and mature on May 1, 2019. One of the notes, in the amount
of $15,000 was issued to Michael R. Morrisett, the Company's President, and another note in the amount of $25,000
was issued to Anthony Kamin, a member of the Company's Board of Directors.

Between February 12 and March 15, 2019 the Company raised $167,000 when 1,113,334 of the outstanding $0.15
warrants to purchase common stock were exercised by various warrant holders.

On March 27, 2019, Anthony Kamin converted $50,000 of the Company's notes payable to him to common stock by
exercising 333,334 of $0.15 stock warrants which he owned.

On March 27, 2018 the Company entered into a First Amendment to the Senior Revolver Loan Agreement (the
"Agreement") with Crossfirst Bank. Under the terms of the Agreement, the commitment amount was increased to
$9,000,000 and the maturity date was extended until March 27, 2021. The Company paid an origination fee of
$76,900 and borrowed $4,880,383 of new funds (See Note 8) for the purchase of the Energy Quest I, LLC
properties.
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EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

December 31, 2018 and 2017

The following reserve estimates present the Company's estimate of the proven natural gas and oil reserves and net
cash flow of the Properties, in accordance with the guidelines established by the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Company emphasizes that reserve estimates are inherently imprecise and that estimates of new
discoveries are more imprecise than those of producing natural gas and oil properties. Accordingly, the estimates are
expected to change as future information becomes available. All the oil and natural gas reserves are located in
Louisiana.

Reserve Quantity Information

Proved oil and natural gas reserves are those quantities of oil and gas, which by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be economically producible from a given date forward,
from known reservoirs, and under existing economic conditions, operating methods, and government regulations.
Proved developed reserves are proved reserves that can be expected to be recovered through existing wells with
existing equipment and operating methods or in which the cost of the required equipment is relatively minor compared
to the cost of a new well. Proved undeveloped reserves are proved reserves that are expected to be recovered from
new wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing wells where a relatively major expenditures is required for
recompletion. Below are the net quantities of net proved developed and undeveloped reserves of the Properties:

As of
December 31,
2018

Natural
Oil Gas
(MBbI§MMcf)
Proved developed reserves:
Beginning of year — —
Purchase of minerals in place 274 903

Production G ) a6 )
End of year 269 887
Proved developed 269 887
Proved undeveloped 293 —
Proved behind pipe 91 —
Proved shut in 7 —

661 887
- 45 -
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Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Oil and Natural Gas Reserves

The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to oil and natural gas reserves and associated
changes in standard measure amounts were prepared in accordance with the provision of Financial Accounting

Standard Board ASC 932-235-555. Future cash inflows were computed by applying average prices of oil and natural

gas for the last 12 months to estimated future production. Future production and development costs were computed
by estimating the expenditures to be incurred in developing the oil and natural gas reserves at the end of the year,
based on year end costs and assuming continuation of existing economic conditions. Future net cash flows are
discounted at the rate of 10% annually to derive the standardized measure of discounted cash flows. Actual future

cash inflows may vary considerably, and the standardized measure does not necessarily represent the fair value of the

acquired properties' oil and natural gas reserves. Standard measure amounts are:

2018
Future cash inflows $47918,610
Future production costs (15,083,190)
Future development costs (4,221,540 )
Future net cash flows 28,613,880

10% annual discount for timing of cash flows (15,636,260)

Standardized Measure $12,977,620

The 12-month average prices were adjusted to reflect applicable transportation and quality differentials on a
well-by-well basis to arrive at realized sales prices used to estimate the properties' reserves. The prices for the

properties' reserves were as follows:

2018
Representative NYMEX prices:
Natural gas (MMBtu) $2.84
Oil (Bbl) $68.74

Changes in the Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows at 10% per annum are as follows:

2018

Standardized measure — beginning of year $—

Sales of oil and gas production (195,803 )
Purchase of minerals in place 13,173,423
Change in standardized measure 12,977,620
Standardized measure — end of year $12,977,620

Estimates of economically recoverable natural gas and oil reserves and of future net revenues are based upon a
number of variable factors and assumptions, all of which are to some degree subjective and may vary considerably
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from actual results. Therefore, actual production, revenues, development and operating expenditures may not occur as
estimated. The reserve data are estimates only, are subject to many uncertainties, and are based on data gained from
production histories and on assumptions as to geologic formations and other matters. Actual quantities of natural gas
and oil may differ materially from the amounts estimated.
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Capitalization of Oil and Gas Properties

Empire has not incurred and capitalized exploratory well costs for properties pending the determination of proved
status, exploratory well costs reclassified to wells or exploratory well costs that were charged to expense.

The aggregate capitalized costs of oil and gas properties are as follows:

2018
Proved producing wells $584.,461
Proved undeveloped 547,882
Lease and well equipment 284,233
Asset retirement obligation 228,721
Gross capitalized costs 1,645,297
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization (15,527 )
Net capitalized costs $1,629,770
2018

Property acquisition cost $1,645,297
Exploration cost —
Development cost —

Total gross capitalized costs $1,645,297
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Depreciation and amortization
39 61 1 101 1 13 3 17 118
Interest expense

8 22 30 5 2 (1) 6 36

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, before income taxes and equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated
affiliates

as) @7 ) @00) 10 9 2 21 (79)
Income tax expense (benefit)

10 (11) (36) 37) 3 3) 37)
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Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, before equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates
(25) (66) 28 (63) 7 9 5 21 (42)
Equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates

1 (1) 31 @1 31)
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Earnings (loss) from continuing operations

$(24) $(66) $27 $(63) $7 $9 $(26) $(10) $  $(73)
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Assets
$8,145 $3,720 $229 $12,094 $1,290 $676 $660 $2,626 $(33) $14,687
Goodwill

2,240 1989 3 4,232 263 119 95 477 4,709
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Table of Conten
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) continued

As of and for the three months ended March 31, 2013:

FNF FNFV
Corporate Corporate
and Total Restaurant and Total

Title BKFS Other FNF Core Remy Group Other FNFVEliminations Total
(In millions)

Title premiums $ 937 $ $ $ 937 § $ $ $ $ $ 937
Other revenues 406 10 416 19 19 435
Auto parts revenues 284 284 284
Restaurant revenues 354 354 354

Revenues from

external customers 1,343 10 1,353 284 354 19 657 2,010
Interest and

investment income

(loss), including

realized gains and

losses 32 32 1 2) €)) 31
Total revenues 1,375 10 1,385 285 352 19 656 2,041
Depreciation and

amortization 16 1 17 1 13 2 16 33
Interest expense 16 16 7 2 ) 7 23

Earnings (loss) from
continuing operations,
before income taxes
and equity in earnings

(loss) of

unconsolidated

affiliates 169 (23) 146 €)) ®) 9 137
Income tax expense

(benefit) 60 ®) 52 (6) 6) 46
Earnings (loss) from 109 (15) 94 (1) 2) 3 91

continuing operations,
before equity in
earnings (loss) of
unconsolidated
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affiliates

Equity in earnings

(loss) of

unconsolidated

affiliates 1 1 4) 4 (€))

Earnings (loss) from
continuing operations $ 110 $ $ 15 $ 95 $ (D $ $ ©® $ @ 9% $ 88

Assets $6,828 $ $ 310 7,138 $1,278 $ 671 $ 662 $2,611 $ (67) $9,682
Goodwill 1,434 3 1,437 248 119 79 446 1,883
The activities of the reportable segments include the following:

FNF Core Operations

Title

This segment consists of the operations of our title insurance underwriters and related businesses. This segment
provides core title insurance and escrow and other title related services including collection and trust activities,
trustee s sales guarantees, recordings and reconveyances, and home warranty insurance. This segment also includes the
transaction services business acquired from LPS, now combined with our ServiceLink business.

BKFS

This segment consists of the operations of BKFS. This segment provides core technology and data and analytics

services through leading software systems and information solutions that facilitate and automate many of the business
processes across the life cycle of a mortgage.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) continued

FNF Corporate and Other

The FNF Corporate and Other segment consists of the operations of the parent holding company, certain other
unallocated corporate overhead expenses, other smaller real estate and insurance related operations.

FNFV

Remy

This segment consists of the operations of Remy, in which we have a 51% ownership interest. Remy is a leading
designer, manufacturer, remanufacturer, marketer and distributor of aftermarket and original equipment electrical
components for automobiles, light trucks, heavy-duty trucks and other vehicles.

Restaurant Group

The Restaurant Group segment consists of the operations of ABRH, in which we have a 55% ownership interest.

ABRH is the owner and operator of the O Charley s, Ninety Nine Restaurants, Max & Erma s, Village Inn and Bakers
Square concepts. This segment also includes J. Alexander s, which also includes the Stoney River Legendary Steaks
concept.

Portfolio Company Corporate and Other

The Portfolio Company Corporate and Other segment primarily consists of our share in the operations of certain
equity investments, including Ceridian, Digital Insurance and other smaller operations which are not title related.
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Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that are not purely historical are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, including statements regarding our expectations, hopes, intentions or strategies regarding the
future. All forward-looking statements included in this document are based on information available to us on the date
hereof, and we assume no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements. It is important to note that our
actual results could vary materially from those forward-looking statements contained herein due to many factors,
including, but not limited to: changes in general economic, business and political conditions, including changes in the
financial markets; continued weakness or adverse changes in the level of real estate activity, which may be caused by,
among other things, high or increasing interest rates, a limited supply of mortgage funding or a weak U.S. economy;
our potential inability to find suitable acquisition candidates, acquisitions in lines of business that will not necessarily
be limited to our traditional areas of focus, or difficulties in integrating acquisitions; our dependence on distributions
from our title insurance underwriters as our main source of cash flow; significant competition that our operating
subsidiaries face; compliance with extensive government regulation of our operating subsidiaries and adverse changes
in applicable laws or regulations or in their application by regulators; and other risks detailed in the Statement
Regarding Forward-Looking Information,  Risk Factors and other sections of the Company s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013 and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Overview

We are a leading provider of title insurance, technology and transaction services to the real estate and mortgage

industries. We are the nation s largest title insurance company through our title insurance underwriters Fidelity National
Title, Chicago Title, Commonwealth Land Title, Alamo Title and National Title of New York that collectively issue

more title insurance policies than any other title company in the United States. We also provide industry-leading

mortgage technology solutions and transaction services, including MSP®, the leading residential mortgage servicing
technology platform in the U.S., through our majority-owned subsidiaries, Black Knight Financial Services, LLC

( BKFS ) and ServiceLink Holdings, LLC ( ServiceLink ). In addition, we own majority and minority equity investment
stakes in a number of entities, including American Blue Ribbon Holdings, LL.C ( ABRH ), J. Alexander s, LLC ( J.
Alexander s ), Remy International, Inc. ( Remy ), Ceridian HCM, Inc., Comdata Inc. (collectively Ceridian ) and Digital
Insurance, Inc. ( Digital Insurance ).

We currently have six reporting segments as follows:

FNF Core Operations

Title

This segment consists of the operations of our title insurance underwriters and related businesses. This segment
provides core title insurance and escrow and other title related services including collection and trust activities,

trustee s sales guarantees, recordings and reconveyances, and home warranty insurance. This segment also includes the

transaction services business acquired from LPS, now combined with our ServiceLink business.

BKFS
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This segment consists of the operations of BKFS. This segment provides core technology and data and analytics
services through leading software systems and information solutions that facilitate and automate many of the business
processes across the life cycle of a mortgage.
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FNF Corporate and Other

The FNF Corporate and Other segment consists of the operations of the parent holding company, certain other
unallocated corporate overhead expenses, other smaller real estate and insurance related operations.

FNFV
Remy

This segment consists of the operations of Remy, in which we have a 51% ownership interest. Remy is a leading
designer, manufacturer, remanufacturer, marketer and distributor of aftermarket and original equipment electrical
components for automobiles, light trucks, heavy-duty trucks and other vehicles.

Restaurant Group

The Restaurant Group segment consists of the operations of ABRH, in which we have a 55% ownership interest.

ABRH is the owner and operator of the O Charley s, Ninety Nine Restaurants, Max & Erma s, Village Inn and Bakers
Square concepts. This segment also includes J. Alexander s, which also includes the Stoney River Legendary Steaks
concept.

FNFV Corporate and Other

The FNFV Corporate and Other segment primarily consists of our share in the operations of certain equity
investments, including Ceridian, Digital Insurance and other smaller operations which are not title related.

Recent Developments

On January 31, 2014 we announced our plans to form a new tracking stock for Fidelity National Financial Ventures

( FNFV ). As aresult, we have decided to begin separately reporting the results of our core operations, which include
our Title segment and BKFS, and our FNFV operations, which include Remy, the Restaurant Group, Digital
Insurance, our minority equity investment in Ceridian and other smaller operations. We expect to complete the
formation of our tracking stock on or about June 30, 2014.

On January 13, 2014, Remy acquired substantially all of the assets of United Starters and Alternators Industries, Inc.

( USA Industries ) pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Asset Purchase Agreement, effective as of January 13,
2014. USA Industries is a leading North American distributor of premium quality re-manufactured and new
alternators, starters, constant velocity axles and disc brake calipers for the light-duty aftermarket. Total consideration
paid was $40 million, net of cash acquired.

On January 2, 2014, we completed the purchase of Lender Processing Services, Inc. ( LPS ). The purchase
consideration paid was $37.14 per share, of which $28.10 per share was paid in cash and the remaining $9.04 was
paid in FNF common shares. The purchase consideration represented an exchange ratio of 0.28742 per share of LPS
common stock. Total consideration paid for LPS was $3.4 billion, which consisted of $2,248 million in cash, net of
cash acquired and $839 million in FNF common stock. In order to pay the stock component of the consideration, we
issued 25,920,078 shares to the former LPS shareholders. See Note B for further discussion.

Discontinued Operations
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The results from two closed J. Alexander s locations and a settlement services company closed in the second quarter of
2013 are reflected in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations as discontinued operations for all periods
presented. Total revenues included in discontinued operations was $8 million for the three months ending March 31,
2013. Pre-tax earnings included in discontinued operations are $1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013.
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Transactions with Related Parties

Our financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2013, reflect related party transactions with Fidelity
National Information Services, Inc. ( FIS ), which was considered a related party until December 31, 2013. See Note A
of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further details on our transactions with related

parties.

Business Trends and Conditions
FNF Core Operations

Title revenue is closely related to the level of real estate activity which includes sales, mortgage financing and
mortgage refinancing. The levels of real estate activity are primarily affected by the average price of real estate sales,
the availability of funds to finance purchases, mortgage interest rates and the strength of the United States economy,
including employment levels. Declines in the level of real estate activity or the average price of real estate sales will
adversely affect our title insurance revenues.

Since December 2008, the Federal Reserve has held the federal funds rate at 0.0%-0.25%, and has indicated that rates
will stay at this level at least through 2014. Mortgage interest rates were at historically low levels through the
beginning of 2013. During the last half of 2013, however, interest rates rose to their highest level since 2011. In 2014,
interest rates have remained consistent with the fourth quarter of 2013.

As of April 8, 2014, the Mortgage Banker s Association ( MBA ) estimated the size of the U.S. mortgage originations
market as shown in the following table for 2012 2015 in their Mortgage Finance Forecast (in trillions):

2015 2014 2013 2012

Purchase transactions $0.8 $0.7 $0.7 $0.5
Refinance transactions 0.4 0.4 1.1 1.2
Total U.S. mortgage originations forecast $1.2 $1.1 $1.8 $1.7

As shown above, the originations in 2013 and 2012 were driven primarily by refinance transactions, which coincides
with the historically low interest rates experienced during those years. In 2014, the MBA predicts a 39.3% decrease in
the total market, primarily due to a 62.0% decrease in refinance transactions in 2014, with the originations in 2015
remaining relatively consistent with those in 2014.

Several pieces of legislation were enacted to address the struggling mortgage market and the current economic and
financial environment. On October 24, 2011, the Federal Housing Finance Agency ( FHFA ) announced a series of
changes to the Home Affordable Refinance Program ( HARP ) that would make it easier for certain borrowers who owe
more than their home is worth and who are current on their mortgage payments to refinance their mortgages at lower
interest rates. The program reduces or eliminates the risk-based fees Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac charge on many

loans, raises the loan-to-home value ratio requirement for refinancing, and streamlines the underwriting process.
According to the Federal Housing Authority ( FHA ), lenders began taking refinancing applications on December 1,
2011 under the modified HARP. On April 11, 2013, the FHFA announced that the modified HARP program had been
extended through December 2015. We believe the modified HARP program had a positive effect on our results during
2013 and 2012, but are uncertain to what degree the program may impact our results in the future.
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During 2010, a number of lenders imposed freezes on foreclosures in some or all states as they reviewed their
foreclosure practices. In response to these freezes, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency ( OCC ) reviewed the
foreclosure practices in the residential mortgage loan servicing industry. On April 13, 2011, the OCC and other

federal regulators (collectively the banking agencies ) announced formal consent orders against several national bank
mortgage servicers and third-party service providers for inappropriate practices related to
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residential mortgage loan servicing and foreclosure processing. The consent orders require the servicers to promptly
correct deficiencies and make improvements in practices for residential mortgage loan servicing and foreclosure
processing, including improvements to future communications with borrowers and a comprehensive look back to
assess whether foreclosures complied with federal and state laws and whether any deficiencies in the process or
related documentation resulted in financial injury to borrowers. Our title insurance underwriters were not involved in
these enforcement actions and we do not believe that our title insurance underwriters are exposed to significant losses
resulting from faulty foreclosure practices. Our title insurance underwriters issue title policies on real estate owned
properties to new purchasers and lenders to those purchasers. We believe that these policies will not result in
significant additional claims exposure to us because even if a court sets aside a foreclosure due to a defect in
documentation, the foreclosing lender would be required to return to our insureds all funds obtained from them,
resulting in reduced exposure under the title insurance policy. Further, we believe that under current law and the rights
we have under our title insurance policies, we would have the right to seek recovery from the foreclosing lender in the
event of a failure to comply with state laws or local practices in connection with a foreclosure. The former LPS and
certain of its subsidiaries entered into a consent order with the banking agencies in relation to its default operations,
now part of the Title segment. As part of the consent order, LPS agreed to further study the issues identified in the
review and enhance its compliance, internal audit, risk management and board oversight plans with respect to the
related businesses, among additional agreed undertakings. In January 2013, ten large mortgage servicers concluded
the reviews required by the 2011 consent orders and agreed to monetary settlements, and LPS also entered into
settlement agreements in January 2013 with 49 States and the District of Columbia relating to certain practices within
its default operations and in February 2014, we also settled with the State of Nevada and the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. In April 2013, these mortgage servicers began making restitution under these settlements. We
cannot predict whether these settlements may result in more normalized foreclosure timelines in the future. Moreover,
we cannot predict whether any additional legislative or regulatory changes will be implemented as a result of the
findings of the banking agencies or whether the U.S. federal government may take additional action to address the
current housing market and economic uncertainty. Some states have enacted or are considering adopting legislation,
such as the California Homeowner Bill of Rights, that places additional responsibilities and restrictions on servicers
with respect to the foreclosure process. Any such actions could further extend foreclosure timelines. Moreover, as the
processing of foreclosures in accordance with applicable law becomes more onerous, many lenders are addressing
loans in default through other means, such as short sales, in order to avoid the risks and liability now associated with
the foreclosure process. If foreclosure timelines continue to be extended and servicers address delinquent loans
through other processes, the results of our default operations within the Title segment may be adversely affected.

In addition to state-level regulation, segments of our FNF core businesses are subject to regulation by federal
agencies, including the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau ( CFPB ). The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform

( Dodd-Frank ) and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 established the CFPB, and in January 2012, President Obama
appointed its first director. The CFPB has been given broad authority to regulate, among other areas, the mortgage and
real estate markets in matters pertaining to consumers. This authority includes the enforcement of the Real Estate
Settlement Procedures Act formerly placed with the Department of Housing and Urban Development. On July 9,
2012, the CFPB introduced a number of proposed rules related to the enforcement of the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act and the Truth in Lending Act, including, among others, measures designed to (i) simplify financing
documentation and (ii) require lenders to deliver to consumers a statement of final financing charges (and the related
annual percentage rate) at least three business days prior to the closing. These rules became effective on January 10,
2014. Dodd-Frank also included regulation over financial services and other lending related businesses including our
newly acquired BKFS business. We cannot be certain what impact, if any, these new rules, or the CFPB generally,
will have on our core businesses.

Historically, real estate transactions have produced seasonal revenue levels for the real estate industry including title
insurers. The first calendar quarter is typically the weakest quarter in terms of revenue due to the generally low
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volume of home sales during January and February. The third calendar quarter has been typically the strongest in
terms of revenue primarily due to a higher volume of home sales in the summer months and the
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fourth quarter is usually also strong due to commercial entities desiring to complete transactions by year-end. We have
noted short term fluctuations through recent years in resale and refinance transactions as a result of changes in interest
rates and the implementation and subsequent expiration of government programs designed to stimulate the real estate
market. In 2013, we have seen seasonality trends return to historical patterns. During 2013 and through the first
quarter of 2014, we experienced a moderate increase in existing home sales and we have also seen a decline in total
housing inventory. However, we have experienced significant declines in refinance activity starting in the fourth
quarter of 2013.

Because commercial real estate transactions tend to be driven more by supply and demand for commercial space and
occupancy rates in a particular area rather than by macroeconomic events, we believe that our commercial real estate
title insurance business is less dependent on the industry cycles discussed above than our residential real estate title
business. For the past several years, including the first quarter of 2014, we have experienced an increase in volume
and fee per file of commercial transactions from the previous years, indicating strong commercial markets.

FNFV
Remy

Remy manufactures and sells auto parts, principally starter motors and alternators, as well as hybrid electric motors
and multi-line products, including steering gear, constant velocity axles, and brake calipers, for sale to original
equipment manufacturers (OEM) and aftermarket customers. Remy manufactures products for automobiles as well as
light and heavy duty commercial vehicles. The OEM market for auto parts is dependent on levels of new vehicle
production, which in turn, is affected by the overall economy, consumer confidence, discounts and incentives offered
by automakers and the availability of funds to finance purchases.

In the aftermarket, Remy s results are affected by the strength of the economy and by gas prices, but do not follow the
same cycles as original equipment market sales. In a weaker economy, drivers tend to keep their vehicles and repair
them rather than buying new vehicles. Lower gas prices have historically tended to result in more miles driven, which
increases the frequency with which auto repairs are needed. Nevertheless, a weak economy also may reduce miles
driven. Over the long term, improvements in the durability of original equipment and aftermarket parts has reduced,
and is expected to further reduce, the number of units sold in the aftermarket. Aftermarket revenues are also affected
by other factors, including severe weather (which tends to lead to increased sales) and competitive pressures. Many
parts retailers and warehouse distributors purchase starters and alternators from only one or two suppliers, under
contracts that run for five years or less. Pressure from customers to reduce prices is characteristic of the automotive
supply industry. Remy periodically re-negotiates customer agreements. Due to the competitive nature of the business,
the revised terms with customers may impact Remy s ongoing profitability. Remy has taken and expects to continue to
take steps to improve operating efficiencies and minimize or resist price reductions.

Restaurant Group

The restaurant industry is highly competitive and is often affected by changes in consumer tastes and discretionary
spending patterns; changes in general economic conditions; public safety conditions or concerns; demographic trends;
weather conditions; the cost of food products, labor, energy and other operating costs; and governmental

regulations. The restaurant industry is also characterized by high capital investments for new restaurants and relatively
high fixed or semi-variable restaurant operating expenses. Because of the high fixed and semi-variable expenses,
changes in sales in existing restaurants are generally expected to significantly affect restaurant profitability because
many restaurant costs and expenses are not expected to change at the same rate as sales. Restaurant profitability can
also be negatively affected by inflationary and regulatory increases in operating costs and other factors. The most
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significant commodities that may affect our cost of food and beverage are beef, seafood, poultry, and dairy, which
accounted for almost 48 percent of our overall cost of food and beverage in the past. Generally, temporary increases in
these costs are not passed on to guests; however, in the past, we have adjusted menu prices to compensate for
increased costs of a more permanent nature.
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Average weekly sales per restaurant are typically higher in the first and fourth quarters than in other quarters, and we
typically generate a disproportionate share of our earnings from operations in the first and fourth quarters. Holidays,

severe weather and other disruptive conditions may impact sales volumes seasonally in some operating regions.

Our revenues in future periods will continue to be subject to these and other factors that are beyond our control and, as
a result, are likely to fluctuate.

Results of Operations

Consolidated Results of Operations

Net Earnings. The following table presents certain financial data for the periods indicated:

Revenues:

Direct title insurance premiums
Agency title insurance premiums
Escrow, title-related and other fees
Restaurant revenue

Auto parts revenue

Interest and investment income
Realized gains and losses, net

Total revenues

Expenses:

Personnel costs

Agent commissions

Other operating expenses

Cost of auto parts revenue, includes $14 and $18 of
depreciation and amortization in the three months ended
March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively

Cost of restaurant revenue

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for title claim losses

Interest expense

Total expenses

(Loss) earnings from continuing operations before income

taxes and equity in (losses) earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates
Income tax expense
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Three months ended

March 31,
2014

2013

(Dollars in millions)

351
404
646
354
302
30
2

2,089

671
307
429

254
300
118
53
36

2,168

(79)
(37

413
524
435
354
284

33

2

2,041

519
397
325

240
302
33
65
23

1,904

137
46
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Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates 31 3)

Net (loss) earnings from continuing operations $ (73) $ 88

Orders opened by direct title operations 469,000 643,000

Orders closed by direct title operations 295,000 487,000
Revenues.

Total revenues increased $48 million in the three months ended March 31, 2014, compared to the 2013 period. The
increase consisted of increases of $17 million in the Remy segment, $11 million in the FNFV Corporate and Other
segment, $2 million from the Restaurant Group segment and additional revenues of $187 million from the BKFS

segment. This was offset by decreases of $167 million in the Title segment, and $2 million in the FNF Corporate and
Other segment,
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Restaurant revenue includes the consolidated results of operations of ABRH and J. Alexander s. Auto parts revenue
includes the consolidated results of operations of Remy.

The change in revenue from operations is discussed in further detail at the segment level below.

Interest and investment income levels are primarily a function of securities markets, interest rates and the amount of
cash available for investment. Interest and investment income decreased $3 million in the three months ended
March 31, 2014 compared to the 2013 period. The decrease is a direct result of decreases in bond yields of $3 million.

Net realized gains and losses totaled $2 million and $(2) million in the three-month periods ended March 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. The increase was mainly due to gains on structured notes of $2 million included in the current
period, while the previous period had $2 million in impairment losses relating to the Restaurant Group segment.

Expenses.

Our operating expenses consist primarily of personnel costs and other operating expenses, which in our title insurance
business are incurred as orders are received and processed, and agent commissions, which are incurred as revenue is
recognized, as well as cost of auto parts revenue and cost of restaurant revenue. Title insurance premiums, escrow and
title-related fees are generally recognized as income at the time the underlying transaction closes. As a result, direct
title operations revenue lags approximately 45-60 days behind expenses and therefore gross margins may fluctuate.
The changes in the market environment, mix of business between direct and agency operations and the contributions
from our various business units have impacted margins and net earnings. We have implemented programs and have
taken necessary actions to maintain expense levels consistent with revenue streams. However, a short time lag exists
in reducing variable costs and certain fixed costs are incurred regardless of revenue levels.

Personnel costs include base salaries, commissions, benefits, stock-based compensation and bonuses paid to
employees, and are one of our most significant operating expenses. Personnel costs increased $152 million in the three
months ended March 31, 2014, from the 2013 period, with increases of $15 million in the Title segment, $9 million in
the FNF Corporate and Other segment and an additional $133 million from the BKFS segment. This was offset by
decreases of $5 million in the Remy segment and $1 million in the FNFV Corporate and Other segment. There were
an additional 7,881 employees added with the acquisition of LPS in the first quarter of 2014. Personnel costs that are
directly attributable to the operations of Remy and the Restaurant Group are included in Cost of auto parts revenue
and Cost of restaurant revenue, respectively. The change in personnel costs is discussed in further detail at the
segment level below.

Agent commissions represent the portion of premiums retained by agents pursuant to the terms of their respective
agency contracts. The change in agent commissions is discussed in further detail at the segment level below.

Other operating expenses consist primarily of facilities expenses, title plant maintenance, premium taxes (which
insurance underwriters are required to pay on title premiums in lieu of franchise and other state taxes), postage and
courier services, computer services, professional services, travel expenses, general insurance, and bad debt expense on
our trade and notes receivable. Other operating expenses increased $104 million in the three months ended March 31,
2014, from the 2013 period, reflecting an increase of $81 million in the Title segment and additional $62 million of
expense from BKFS, offset by decreases of $32 million in the FNF Corporate and Other segment, $1 million in the
Remy segment, and $6 million in the Restaurant Group segment. In the Title segment, the increase in the three-month
period was due mainly to the addition of the transaction services business acquired from LPS. The decrease in the
FNF Corporate and Other segments is mainly due to $29 million of LPS transactions costs, which were reimbursed by
BKEFS to FNF during the quarter.
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Cost of auto parts revenue includes cost of raw materials, payroll and related costs and expenses directly related to
manufacturing, and overhead expenses allocated to the costs of production such as depreciation and amortization at
Remy. Remy results of operations are discussed in further detail at the segment level below.

Cost of restaurant revenue includes cost of food and beverage, primarily the costs of beef, groceries, produce, seafood,
poultry and alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages net of vendor discounts and rebates, payroll and related costs and
expenses directly relating to restaurant level activities, and restaurant operating costs including occupancy and other
operating expenses at the restaurant level. The Restaurant group results of operations are discussed in further detail at
the segment level below.

Depreciation and amortization increased $85 million in the three months ended March 31, 2014 from the 2013 period.
The increase is mainly due to additional amortization related to the LPS acquisition. In the Title segment, an
additional $22 million of depreciation and amortization was recorded on assets acquired. In the BKFS segment, an
additional $52 million of depreciation and amortization was recorded on assets acquired with LPS.

The provision for title claim losses includes an estimate of anticipated title and title-related claims, and escrow losses.
The provision for title claim losses is discussed in further detail below at the segment level.

Interest expense increased $13 million in the three months ended March 31, 2014, from the 2013 period. The increase
includes an additional $1 million interest expense incurred on the FNF revolving credit facility funded in the first
quarter of 2014, $6 million related to the FNF term loan funded in the first quarter of 2014 and an additional $8
million for the acquired LPS unsecured notes, offset by a decrease in interest expense of $2 million at Remy.

Income tax (benefit) expense was $(37) million and $46 million in the three-month periods ended March 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. Income tax (benefit) expense as a percentage of (loss) earnings before income taxes was 47% and
34% for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Income taxes as a percentage of
earnings (loss) before income taxes fluctuates depending on our estimate of ultimate income tax liability and changes
in the characteristics of net earnings, such as the weighting of operating income versus investment income. Included in
income tax expense is a $12 million income tax benefit related to our portion of $30 million equity in losses recorded
during the quarter related to our minority investment in Ceridian.

Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates was $31 million and $3 million for the three-month periods ended

March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The equity in losses in 2014 and 2013 consisted of net losses related to our
investment in Ceridian, and other investments in unconsolidated affiliates. Included in the three-month period ended
March 31, 2014, are losses at Ceridian of $21 million, net of taxes, primarily related to the settlement of the U.S.
Fueling Merchants lawsuit. The current period also includes six months of Ceridian s results, as we have transitioned
Ceridian to a real-time financial reporting schedule as opposed to the historical one-quarter lag. As a result, the first
quarter of 2014 includes $34 million in losses for the period ending December 31, 2013, and $4 million in earnings for
the period ended March 31, 2014. Also included in results are losses from other investments of $1 million. The 2013
time periods include our 32% share of a $10 million, net of tax, one time charge to write off a deferred tax asset at
Ceridian.
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FNF Core

Title

Beginning January 2, 2014, the Title segment includes the results of the transaction services business acquired with

LPS.

Revenues:

Direct title insurance premiums
Agency title insurance premiums
Escrow, title related and other fees
Interest and investment income
Realized gains and losses, net

Total revenues

Expenses:

Personnel costs

Other operating expenses
Agent commissions
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for title claim losses

Total expenses

(Loss) earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes and equity in earnings of unconsolidated

affiliates

Three months ended March 31,
2014 2013
(In millions)

$ 351 $ 413
404 524
423 406
28 32
2
1,208 1,375
466 451
358 277
307 397
39 16
53 65
1,223 1,206
$ (15 $ 169

Total revenues for the Title segment decreased $167 million, or 12%, in the three months ended March 31, 2014 from
the 2013 period.

The following table presents the percentages of title insurance premiums generated by our direct and agency

operations:

Title premiums from direct operations
Title premiums from agency operations
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Three months ended March 31,
% of %

(Dollars in millions)

$351 46%  $413

404 54 524

of

2014 Total 2013 Total

44%
56
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Total title premiums $755 100%  $937 100%

Title premiums decreased 19% in the three months ended March 31, 2014 as compared to the 2013 period. The
decrease was made up of a decrease in premiums from direct operations of $62 million, or 15%, and a decrease in
premiums from agency operations of $120 million, or 23% in the three months ended March 31, 2014.
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The following table presents the percentages of closed title insurance orders generated by purchase and refinance
transactions by our direct operations:

Three months ended March 31,

2014 2013
Opened title insurance orders from purchase
transactions(1) 70.5% 51.3%
Opened title insurance orders from refinance
transactions(1) 29.5 48.7
100.0% 100.0%
Closed title insurance orders from purchase
transactions(1) 67.7% 43.7%
Closed title insurance orders from refinance
transactions(1) 32.3 56.3
100.0% 100.0%

(1) Percentages exclude consideration of an immaterial number of non-purchase and non-refinance orders.

Title premiums from direct operations decreased in 2014, primarily due to a decrease in closed order volumes as
compared to the prior quarter, partially offset by an increase in premiums from the acquisition of the transaction
services businesses from LPS, which are included in the Title segment as of January 2, 2014. Also offsetting the
decline in orders was an increase in commercial revenue of $16 million from the 2013 period. The decrease in order
volumes was primarily related to a significant decrease in refinance transactions since the fourth quarter of 2014. In
2013, refinance transactions represented more than 56% of our total closed orders versus 32% in the first quarter of
2014. Closed order volumes were 295,000 in the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with 487,000 in the
three months ended March 31, 2013. Although there was a decrease in closed order volumes in the current quarter,
this was partially offset by a 35% increase in the fee per file. The average fee per file in our direct operations was
$1,858 in the three months ended March 31, 2014, compared to $1,373 in the three months ended March 31, 2013,
with the increase reflecting a higher volume of purchase transactions, which have a higher fee per file. The fee per file
tends to change as the mix of refinance and purchase transactions changes, because purchase transactions involve the
issuance of both a lender s policy and an owner s policy, resulting in higher fees, whereas refinance transactions only
require a lender s policy, resulting in lower fees. Also, commercial transactions typically have a higher fee per file.

The decrease in title premiums from agency operations is primarily the result of the overall decline in real estate
activity since the prior quarter. The decrease was consistent with the decrease in direct operations, except that the
direct operations benefited from the addition of the transaction services business from LPS acquired during the
quarter.

Escrow, title related and other fees increased by $17 million, or 4% in the three months ending March 31, 2014 from
2013. Escrow fees, which are more directly related to our direct operations, decreased $54 million, or 31%, in the
three months ended March 31, 2014 compared to the 2013 period, consistent with the decrease in direct title
premiums. Other fees in the Title segment, excluding escrow fees, increased $76 million, or 33%, in the three months
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ended March 31, 2014 compared to the 2013 period due to an increase from the transaction services business acquired
with LPS, which are included within the Title segment as of January 2, 2014.

Personnel costs include base salaries, commissions, benefits, stock-based compensation and bonuses paid to
employees, and are one of our most significant operating expenses. The $15 million, or 3% increase in the
three-month period ended March 31, 2014, is due to charges recorded during the quarter related to the LPS
acquisition, primarily severance expense of $15 million and $13 million for expected bonuses to be paid on our
synergy bonus program. These charges were offset by a decrease in employee levels and lower bonuses and
commissions due to lower revenues and closed order counts. Personnel costs as a percentage of total revenues from
direct title premiums and escrow, title-related and other fees were 60% for the three-month periods ended March 31,
2014 and 55% for the three-month period ended March 31, 2013. Average employee count in the Title segment was
16,994 and 20,080 in the three-month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, with the decrease due to
decreases in orders and revenues, offset by an increase of 2,668 employees from the LPS acquisition.
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Other operating expenses consist primarily of facilities expenses, title plant maintenance, premium taxes (which
insurance underwriters are required to pay on title premiums in lieu of franchise and other state taxes), postage and
courier services, computer services, professional services, travel expenses, general insurance, and bad debt expense on
our trade and notes receivable. Other operating expenses increased $81 million during the quarter due to charges
recorded related to the LPS acquisition, primarily $32 million of transaction costs. Also contributing to the increase
was the addition of the transaction services business acquired from LPS.

Agent commissions represent the portion of premiums retained by agents pursuant to the terms of their respective
agency contracts. Agent commissions and the resulting percentage of agent premiums we retain vary according to

regional differences in real estate closing practices and state regulations.

The following table illustrates the relationship of agent premiums and agent commissions:

Three months ended March 31,

2014 % 2013 %
(Dollars in millions)
Agent premiums 404 100% 524 100%
Agent commissions 307 76% 397 76%
Net retained agent premiums $ 97 24% $ 127 24%

The provision for title claim losses includes an estimate of anticipated title and title-related claims and escrow losses.
The estimate of anticipated title and title-related claims is accrued as a percentage of title premium revenue based on
our historical loss experience and other relevant factors. After considering historical claim losses, reporting patterns
and current market information, and analyzing quantitative and qualitative data provided by our legal, claims and
underwriting departments, we determine a loss provision rate, which is recorded as a percentage of current title
premiums. This loss provision rate is set to provide for losses on current year policies, but due to development of prior
years and our long claim duration, it periodically includes amounts of estimated adverse or positive development on
prior years policies. Any significant adjustments to strengthen or release loss reserves resulting from the comparison
with our actuarial analysis are made in addition to this loss provision rate.

The claim loss provision for title insurance was $53 million and $65 million for the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and reflects an average provision rate of 7% of title premiums. We will
continue to monitor and evaluate our loss provision level, actual claims paid, and the loss reserve position each
quarter.

BKFS

The results of this segment reflected in the three months ended March 31, 2014, reflect results of BKFS and
subsidiaries, which were initially consolidated on January 2, 2014, the date on which we acquired LPS.

Three months ended
March 31, 2014
(In millions)
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Revenues:

Escrow, title related and other fees $ 187

Total revenues 187

Expenses:

Personnel costs 133

Other operating expenses 62

Depreciation and amortization 61

Interest expense 8

Total expenses 264

(Loss) from continuing operations before income taxes

and equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ a7
F-44
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The results of the BKFS segment were negatively affected by costs related to the acquisition and integration of LPS
by FNF during the quarter. Included in other operating expenses were $35 million of transaction expenses. Included
within personnel costs were $24 million in severance expenses relating to the acquisition and a $13 million expense to
accrue for expected bonuses for our synergy bonus program. Depreciation and amortization includes $52 million
related to assets acquired and marked to their fair value in purchase accounting for the acquisition of LPS.

FNF Corporate and Other

The FNF Corporate and Other segment consists of the operations of the parent holding company, certain other
unallocated corporate overhead expenses, and other smaller real estate and insurance related operations.

The FNF Corporate and Other segment generated revenues of $8 million and $10 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Revenues decreased $2 million in the 2014 period from 2013.

Personnel costs were $14 million and $5 million, for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The increase was mainly due an accrual of $6 million for expected bonuses to be paid on our synergy bonus program.
Other operating expenses in the FNF Corporate and Other segment were a credit of $21 million during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 compared to expense of $11 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013. The
2014 time period includes a $29 million payment from LPS subsequent to the merger as reimbursement for certain
transaction costs.

This segment generated pretax losses of $8 million and $23 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively, due to the reasons discussed above.

Remy

Three months ended March 31,
2014 2013
(In millions)

Revenues:
Auto parts revenue $ 302 $ 284
Interest and investment income 1
Total revenues 302 285
Expenses:
Personnel costs 22 27

Cost of auto parts revenue, includes $14 and
$18 of depreciation and amortization for the
three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013,

respectively 254 240
Other operating expenses 10 11
Depreciation and amortization 1 1
Interest expense 5 7
Total expenses 292 286
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Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes $ 10 $ (1)

Auto parts revenues increased $18 million, or 6% in the three months ending March 31, 2014, which included an
additional $8 million in revenues from the newly acquired USA Industries as well as $1 million in favorable foreign

currency translation effect.

Cost of auto parts revenue increased $14 million, or 6%, consistent with the increase in revenues. Remy also recorded
a $3 million step-up gain on finished goods inventory relating to the acquisition of USA Industries.
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Also affecting the three months ending March 31, 2013 was a $7 million charge to Personnel costs for a one-time
executive separation payment made to Remy s former Chief Executive Officer and President pursuant to the terms of a
Transition, Noncompetition and Release Agreement, effective February 28, 2013.

Restaurant Group

Three months ended March 31,
2014 2013
(In millions)

Revenues:

Restaurant revenue $ 354 $ 354
Realized gains and losses, net 2)
Total revenues 354 352
Expenses:

Personnel costs 16 15
Cost of restaurant revenue 300 302
Other operating expenses 14 20
Depreciation and amortization 13 13
Interest expense 2 2
Total expenses 345 352

Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes $ 9 $

Total revenues for the Restaurant group segment increased $2 million, or 1%, in the three months ended March 31,
2014, from the 2013 period.

Net earnings increased $9 million in the three months ending March 31, 2014, mainly due to the results of the
Restaurant group segment for the three months ending March 31, 2013 being negatively affected by a $2 million
impairment charge related to the closing of one J. Alexander s locations and one Max & Erma s location, which was
included in Realized gains and losses, net and $3 million in transaction and integration costs included in Other
operating expenses.

FNFYV Corporate and Other

The FNFV Corporate and Other segment includes our share in the operations of certain equity investments, including
Ceridian, Digital Insurance, Cascade Timberlands and other smaller operations. This segment also includes our Long
Term Incentive Plan ( LTIP ) established during 2012 which is tied to the fair value of certain of our FNFV

investments.

The FNFV Corporate and Other segment generated revenues of $30 million and $19 million for the three months
ending March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Revenues increased $11 million, or 58% in the 2014 period from 2013, which includes an increase of $6 million at
Digital Insurance. Digital Insurance made several acquisitions during 2013, which account for this growth in revenue.

Personnel costs were $20 million and $21 million, for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

This segment generated pretax income (losses) of $2 million and $(8) million for the three months ended March 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively, with the change due to the increase in revenue since the 2014 period.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Requirements. Our current cash requirements include personnel costs, operating expenses, claim payments,
taxes, payments of interest and principal on our debt, capital expenditures, business acquisitions, stock repurchases,
and dividends on our common stock. We paid dividends of $0.18 per share for the first quarter of 2014, or
approximately $49 million. On April 29, 2014, our Board of Directors declared cash dividends of $0.18 per share,
payable on June 30, 2014, to shareholders of record as of June 16, 2014. There are no restrictions on our retained
earnings regarding our ability to pay dividends to our shareholders, although there are limits on the ability of certain
subsidiaries to pay dividends to us, as described below. The declaration of any future dividends is at the discretion of
our Board of Directors. Additional uses of cash flow are expected to include acquisitions, stock repurchases, and debt
repayments.

We continually assess our capital allocation strategy, including decisions relating to the amount of our dividend,
reducing debt, repurchasing our stock, and/or conserving cash. We believe that all anticipated cash requirements for
current operations will be met from internally generated funds, through cash dividends from subsidiaries, cash
generated by investment securities, potential sales of non-strategic assets, and borrowings on existing credit facilities.
Our short-term and long-term liquidity requirements are monitored regularly to ensure that we can meet our cash
requirements. We forecast the needs of all of our subsidiaries and periodically review their short-term and long-term
projected sources and uses of funds, as well as the asset, liability, investment and cash flow assumptions underlying
such forecasts.

Our insurance subsidiaries generate cash from premiums earned and their respective investment portfolios and these
funds are adequate to satisfy the payments of claims and other liabilities. Due to the magnitude of our investment
portfolio in relation to our title claim loss reserves, we do not specifically match durations of our investments to the
cash outflows required to pay claims, but do manage outflows on a shorter time frame.

Our two significant sources of internally generated funds are dividends and other payments from our subsidiaries. As
a holding company, we receive cash from our subsidiaries in the form of dividends and as reimbursement for
operating and other administrative expenses we incur. The reimbursements are paid within the guidelines of
management agreements among us and our subsidiaries. Our insurance subsidiaries are restricted by state regulation in
their ability to pay dividends and make distributions. Each state of domicile regulates the extent to which our title
underwriters can pay dividends or make other distributions. As of December 31, 2013, $1,909 million of our net assets
were restricted from dividend payments without prior approval from the relevant departments of insurance. As of
March 31, 2014, our title subsidiaries could pay or make distributions to us of approximately $308 million without
prior approval. Our underwritten title companies and non-insurance subsidiaries collect revenue and pay operating
expenses. However, they are not regulated to the same extent as our insurance subsidiaries.

The maximum dividend permitted by law is not necessarily indicative of an insurer s actual ability to pay dividends,
which may be constrained by business and regulatory considerations, such as the impact of dividends on surplus,
which could affect an insurer s ratings or competitive position, the amount of premiums that can be written and the
ability to pay future dividends. Further, depending on business and regulatory conditions, we may in the future need to
retain cash in our underwriters or even contribute cash to one or more of them in order to maintain their ratings or
their statutory capital position. Such a requirement could be the result of investment losses, reserve charges, adverse
operating conditions in the current economic environment or changes in statutory accounting requirements by
regulators.

On January 31, 2014, our Board of Directors approved a plan to create a tracking stock for our portfolio company
investments, now known as FNFV. We intend to create and distribute a class of shares to FNF shareholders that tracks
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the performance of FNFV. The primary FNFV investments include our equity interests in Remy, ABRH, J.
Alexander s, Ceridian, and Digital Insurance. We also intend to provide $200 million in financial support to FNFV
comprised of $100 million in cash and $100 million in a line of credit, upon formation of the tracking stock. The $100
million in cash and the $100 million line of credit will be used solely for
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investment purposes. From time to time, we may also provide additional loans to FNFV to cover corporate expenses
and working capital. All additional investments in existing FNFV owned companies and any new FNFV company
investments will be funded and managed by FNFV.

Cash flow from FNF s core operations will be used for general corporate purposes including to reinvest in core
operations, repay debt, pay dividends, repurchase stock, other strategic initiatives and/or conserving cash.

Our cash flows used by operations for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 totaled $161 million and $36
million, respectively. The decrease of $125 million is mainly due to the payment of $41 million in transaction costs
relating to the acquisition of LPS, bonus payments of $191 million including payments under our Long Term
Incentive Program (LTIP), $9 million in severance payments relating to the LPS acquisition and $48 million in
payments made for certain legal matters relating to historic LPS matters. These cash outflows were offset by tax
refunds of $62 million on LPS acquisition costs and a decrease of $77 million in restricted cash corresponding to the
decrease in title volumes.

Capital Expenditures. Total capital expenditures for property and equipment and capitalized software were $36
million and $30 million for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, with the increase
related to expenditures on capitalized software at BKFS, acquired with LPS on January 2, 2014.

Financing. For a description of our financing arrangements see Note F included in Item 1 of Part 1 of this Report,
which is incorporated by reference to into this Part I Item 2.

Seasonality. Historically, real estate transactions have produced seasonal revenue levels for the real estate industry
including title insurers. The first calendar quarter is typically the weakest quarter in terms of revenue due to the
generally low volume of home sales during January and February. The third calendar quarter has been typically the
strongest in terms of revenue primarily due to a higher volume of home sales in the summer months and the fourth
quarter is usually also strong due to commercial entities desiring to complete transactions by year-end. We have noted
short term fluctuations through recent years in resale and refinance transactions as a result of changes in interest rates
and the implementation and subsequent expiration of government programs designed to stimulate the real estate
market. In 2013, we have seen seasonality trends return to historical patterns. During 2013 and through the first
quarter of 2014, we experienced an increase in existing home sales to the highest volume levels since 2007. We have
also seen a decline in total housing inventory to the lowest levels since 2005, and we have seen significant declines in
refinance activity starting in the fourth quarter of 2013.

In our Restaurant Group, average weekly sales per restaurant are typically higher in the first and fourth quarters, and
we typically generate a disproportionate share of our earnings from operations in the first and fourth quarters.
Holidays, severe weather and other disruptive conditions may impact sales volumes seasonally in some operating
regions.

Contractual Obligations. There have been several significant changes to our long term contractual obligations since

the 10-K filed on February 28, 2014. Our contractual obligations generally include our loss reserves, our credit

agreements and other debt facilities, operating lease payments on certain of our premises and equipment and purchase

obligations of Remy and the Restaurant Group. During the three months ending March 31, 2014, as a result of the LPS

acquisition, there were several changes to our notes payable obligations as follows: We acquired $600

million aggregate principal amount of 5.75% Senior Notes due 2023; our $1.1 billion FNF Term Loan due January

2019 was funded in full; and we borrowed $300 million on our Revolving Credit Facility due July 2018. See the
Financing section above and Note F for further information on these obligations. Changes have also been made to our

future minimum operating lease schedule as a result of the LPS acquisition, see Note G for further information on the
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As of March 31, 2014, our required annual payments relating to these contractual obligations were as follows:

2014
remaining 2015 2016 2017 2018  Thereafter Total
(In millions)

Notes payable $ 61 $123 $178 $552 $ 783 § 1,663 $3,360
Operating lease payments 183 169 135 113 86 305 991
Pension and other benefit payments 21 22 21 20 19 125 228
Title claim losses 263 265 190 149 110 703 1,680
Unconditional purchase obligations 112 45 23 4 184
Other 97 122 119 103 88 292 821
Total $737 $746 $666 $941 $1,086 $ 3,088 $7,264

As of March 31, 2014, we had title insurance reserves of $1,680 million which includes acquired title reserves of $55
million related to the acquisition of National Title of New York, which was part of the LPS acquisition. The amounts
and timing of these obligations are estimated and are not set contractually.

While we believe that historical loss payments are a reasonable source for projecting future claim payments, there is
significant inherent uncertainty in this payment pattern estimate because of the potential impact of changes in:

future mortgage interest rates, which will affect the number of real estate and refinancing transactions and,
therefore, the rate at which title insurance claims will emerge;

the legal environment whereby court decisions and reinterpretations of title insurance policy language to
broaden coverage could increase total obligations and influence claim payout patterns;

events such as fraud, escrow theft, multiple property title defects, foreclosure rates and individual large loss
events that can substantially and unexpectedly cause increases in both the amount and timing of estimated
title insurance loss payments; and

loss cost trends whereby increases or decreases in inflationary factors (including the value of real estate) will
influence the ultimate amount of title insurance loss payments.
Based on historical title insurance claim experience, we anticipate the above payment patterns. The uncertainty and
variation in the timing and amount of claim payments could have a material impact on our cash flows from operations
in a particular period.

The Restaurant Group has unconditional purchase obligations with various vendors. These purchase obligations are
primarily food and beverage obligations with fixed commitments in regards to the time period of the contract and the
quantities purchased with annual price adjustments that can fluctuate. We used both historical and projected volume
and pricing as of March 31, 2014 to determine the amount of the obligations.
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Remy has long-term customer obligations related to outstanding customer contracts. These contracts designate Remy
to be the exclusive supplier to the respective customer, product line or distribution center and require Remy to
compensate these customers over several years for store support. Remy has also entered into arrangements with
certain customers under which cores, a key component in its remanufacturing operations, are purchased and held in
inventory. Credits to be issued to these customers for these arrangements are recorded at net present value and are
reflected as long-term customer obligations.

Other contractual obligations include estimated future interest payments on our outstanding debt and an investment
commitment entered into in 2013 for $35 million to be made in the future, of which $26 million is outstanding as of
March 31, 2014.
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Subsequent to the Acquisition of LPS we issued 35% ownership interest in BKFS and ServiceLink to funds affiliated
with Thomas H. Lee Parters ( THL ). For further discussion of the Acquisition of LPS and subsequent reorganization
see Note B in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. As part of the Unit Purchase Agreement

with THL, THL has an option to put their ownership interests of either or both of BKFS and ServiceLink to us if no
public offering of the corresponding business has been consummated after four years. The units owned by THL

( redeemable non-controlling interests ) may be settled in cash or common stock of FNF or a combination of both at our
election in an amount equivalent. The redeemable noncontrolling interests will be settled at the current fair value at

the time we receive notice of THL s put election as determined by the parties or by a third party appraisal under the
terms of the Unit Purchase Agreement. As of March 31, 2014, the redeemable non-controlling interests had a fair

value and carrying value of $687 million. We have excluded this item from the contractual obligations table.

Capital Stock Transactions. On January 2, 2014, we completed the purchase of LPS. As part of the consideration,
$839 million or 25,920,078 shares of FNF common stock was issued to LPS stockholders. See Note B for further
information on the acquisition of LPS.

On October 24, 2013, we offered 17,250,000 shares of our common stock at an offering price of $26.75 per share,
pursuant to an effective registration statement previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We
granted the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase 2,587,500 additional shares at the offering price, which was
subsequently exercised in full. A total of 19,837,500 shares were issued on October 30, 2013, for net proceeds of
approximately $511 million. The net proceeds from this offering were used to pay a portion of the cash consideration
for the LPS Acquisition on January 2, 2014.

On July 21, 2012, our Board of Directors approved a three-year stock purchase program, effective August 1, 2012,
under which we can repurchase up to 15 million shares of our common stock through July 31, 2015. We may make
repurchases from time to time in the open market, in block purchases or in privately negotiated transactions,
depending on market conditions and other factors. We did not repurchase any shares during the three months ended
March 31, 2014. Subsequent to March 31, 2014 through market close on May 5, 2014, we did not purchase any
additional shares. Since the original commencement of the plan on August 1, 2012, we have repurchased a total of
2,080,000 shares for $50 million, or an average of $23.90 per share, and there are 12,920,000 shares available to be
repurchased under this program.

Equity Security and Preferred Stock Investments. Our equity security and preferred stock investments may be subject
to significant volatility. Should the fair value of these investments fall below our cost basis and/or the financial
condition or prospects of these companies deteriorate, we may determine in a future period that this decline in fair
value is other-than-temporary, requiring that an impairment loss be recognized in the period such a determination is
made.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. We do not engage in off-balance sheet activities other than facility and equipment
leasing arrangements. On June 29, 2004 we entered into an off-balance sheet financing arrangement (commonly
referred to as a synthetic lease ). The owner/lessor in this arrangement acquired land and various real property
improvements associated with new construction of an office building in Jacksonville, Florida, at our corporate campus
and headquarters. The lessor financed the acquisition of the facilities through funding provided by third-party
financial institutions. On June 27, 2011, we renewed and amended the synthetic lease for the facilities. The amended
synthetic lease provides for a five year term ending June 27, 2016 and had an outstanding balance as of March 31,
2014 of $71 million. The amended lease includes guarantees by us of up to 83% of the outstanding lease balance, and
options to purchase the facilities at the outstanding lease balance. The guarantee becomes effective if we decline to
purchase the facilities or renew the lease at the end of its term. The lessor is a third-party company and we have no
affiliation or relationship with the lessor or any of its employees, directors or affiliates, and transactions with the
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lessor are limited to the operating lease agreements and the associated rent expense that have been included in other
operating expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. We do not believe the lessor is a
variable interest entity, as defined in the FASB standard on consolidation of variable interest entities.
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Critical Accounting Policies

See Note B for a discussion of the changes to our critical accounting policies described in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

There have been no material changes in the market risks described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange
Act. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in
the reports that we file or submit under the Act is: (a) recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time
periods specified in the Commission s rules and forms; and (b) accumulated and communicated to management,
including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended
March 31, 2014 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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Part II: OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See discussion of legal proceedings in Note F to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1
of Part I of this Report, which is incorporated by reference into this Part II, Item 1, as well as Item 3. Legal
Proceedings, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during the quarter ended March 31, 2014.

Item 6. Exhibits
(a) Exhibits:

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

322 Certification by Chief Financial Officer of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

101 The following materials from Fidelity National Financial s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2014, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) the
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings, (iv) the Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders Equity, (v) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and
(vi) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 8, 2014 FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
(registrant)
By: /s/  Anthony J. Park

Anthony J. Park
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
No. Description
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
322 Certification by Chief Financial Officer of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
101 The following materials from Fidelity National Financial s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended March 31, 2014, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) the
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations,
(iii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings, (iv) the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity, (v) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows, and (vi) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Annex G FNF s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 3, 2014
UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K

Current Report
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Date of Report (date of earliest event reported):

January 2, 2014

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

001-32630

(Commission File Number)
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Delaware 16-1725106
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (IRS Employer Identification Number)

Incorporation or Organization)
601 Riverside Avenue

Jacksonville, Florida 32204
(Addresses of Principal Executive Offices)
(904) 854-8100

(Registrant s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

(Former Name or Former Address, if Changed Since Last Report)

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of
the registrant under any of the following provisions:

Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))
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Item 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

On January 2, 2014, upon consummation of the Merger (defined below) the registrant, Fidelity National Financial,

Inc., a Delaware corporation (_ENF ), entered into a Supplemental Indenture with Lender Processing Services, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (_LPS ), Black Knight Lending Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation ( BKLS, and along with
LPS, the _Issuers ) and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the Supplemental Indenture ), to the Indenture (as
supplemented by the Supplemental Indenture, the _Indenture ), dated as of October 12, 2012, among LPS, the
subsidiary guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, related to LPS 5.75% Senior Notes
due 2023 (the _Notes ).

Pursuant to the terms of the Supplemental Indenture, (i) FNF became a guarantor of LPS obligations under the Notes
and agreed to fully and unconditionally guarantee the Notes, on a joint and several basis with the guarantors named in
the Indenture, and (ii) BKLS became a co-issuer of the Notes and agreed to become a co-obligor of LPS obligations
under the Indenture and the Notes, on the same terms and subject to the same conditions as LPS, on a joint and several
basis.

The foregoing summary of the Supplemental Indenture does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and qualified
in its entirety by, the full text of the Supplemental Indenture, which is filed as Exhibit 4.1 hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposal of Assets.
On January 2, 2014, FNF completed the acquisition of LPS pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the

Merger Agreement ), dated as of May 28, 2013, among FNF, Lion Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a
subsidiary of FNF (_Merger Sub ), and LPS. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub merged with and into LPS
(the _Merger ), with LPS surviving as a subsidiary of FNF, and each outstanding share of common stock, par value
$0.0001 per share, of LPS (the _LPS Common Stock ) (other than shares owned by LPS, its subsidiaries, FNF or
Merger Sub and shares in respect of which appraisal rights had been properly exercised and perfected under Delaware
law) was automatically converted into the right to receive (i) $28.102 in cash and (ii) 0.28742 of a share of Class A
common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of FNF (_FNF Common Stock ) (the Merger Consideration ). The Merger
was effective on January 2, 2014.

In connection with the Merger, FNF issued approximately 25.9 million shares of FNF Common Stock and paid
approximately $2.5 billion in cash to former stockholders and equity award holders of LPS.

Upon the closing of the Merger, the shares of LPS Common Stock, which previously traded under the ticker symbol
LPS on the New York Stock Exchange (the NYSE ), ceased trading on, and were delisted from, the NYSE.

The foregoing description of the Merger and the Merger Agreement does not purport to be complete and is qualified
in its entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 2.1 to FNF s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the _Commission ) on May 28, 2013.

Item 2.03 Creation of a Direct Financial Obligation or an Obligation under an Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement
of a Registrant.

The information set forth under Item 1.01 above is incorporated by reference into this Item 2.03.
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As of January 2, 2014, $600 million in aggregate principal amount of Notes was outstanding. The Notes are due
October 2023 and were issued pursuant to the Indenture. At any time and from time to time, prior to October 15, 2015,
the Issuers may redeem up to a maximum of 35% of the original aggregate principal amount of the Notes with the
proceeds of one or more equity offerings, at a redemption price equal to 105.75% of the
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principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the redemption date (subject to the right
of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date). Prior to
October 15, 2017, the Issuers may redeem some or all of the Notes by paying a make-whole premium based on U.S.
Treasury rates. On or after October 15, 2017, the Issuers may redeem some or all of the Notes at the redemption prices
described in the Indenture, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

The Indenture contains covenants that, among other things, limit the Issuers ability and the ability of certain of the
Issuers subsidiaries (a) to incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue preferred stock, (b) to make certain
restricted payments, including dividends or distributions on equity interests held by persons other than the Issuers or
certain subsidiaries, in excess of an amount generally equal to 50% of consolidated net income generated since July 1,
2008, (c) to create or incur certain liens, (d) to engage in sale and leaseback transactions, (e) to create restrictions that
would prevent or limit the ability of certain subsidiaries to (1) pay dividends or other distributions to the Issuers or
certain other subsidiaries, (2) repay any debt or make any loans or advances to the Issuers or certain other subsidiaries
or (3) transfer any property or assets to the Issuers or certain other subsidiaries, (f) to sell or dispose of assets of the
Issuers or any restricted subsidiary or enter into merger or consolidation transactions and (g) to engage in certain
transactions with affiliates. Pursuant to the terms of the Supplemental Indenture, these covenants do not apply to FNF.
These covenants are subject to a number of exceptions, limitations and qualifications in the Indenture. In addition,
most of these covenants will be suspended during any period when either Standard & Poor s Ratings Group or Moody s
Investor Services, Inc. assign the Notes an Investment Grade Rating (as defined in the Indenture) and no default has
occurred and is continuing under the Indenture. The Notes are currently in a covenant suspension period.

The Indenture contains customary events of default, including failure of the Issuers (i) to pay principal and interest
when due and payable and breach of certain other covenants and (ii) to make an offer to purchase and pay for Notes
tendered as required by the Indenture. Events of default also include cross defaults, with respect to any other debt of
the Issuers or debt of certain subsidiaries having an outstanding principal amount of $80.0 million or more in the
aggregate for all such debt, arising from (i) failure to make a principal payment when due and such defaulted payment
is not made, waived or extended within the applicable grace period or (ii) the occurrence of an event which results in
such debt being due and payable prior to its scheduled maturity. Upon the occurrence of an event of default (other
than a bankruptcy default with respect to the Issuers or certain subsidiaries), the trustee or holders of at least 25% of
the Notes then outstanding may accelerate the Notes by giving the Issuers appropriate notice. If, however, a
bankruptcy default occurs with respect to the Issuers or certain subsidiaries, then the principal of and accrued interest
on the Notes then outstanding will accelerate immediately without any declaration or other act on the part of the
trustee or any holder.

The foregoing summary of the Indenture does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety
by, the full text of the Indenture, which is incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.2 hereto.

Item 8.01 Other Events.
On January 2, 2014, FNF issued a press release announcing the completion of the Merger. A copy of the press release
is attached as Exhibit 99.1 to this report and incorporated herein by reference.

FNF has formed a wholly-owned subsidiary called Black Knight Financial Services, Inc. (_Black Knight ) to indirectly
own both the former LPS business units and FNF s ServiceLink business. Following the closing of the Merger and
completion of an internal reorganization, each of Black Knight s two operating subsidiaries, Black Knight Financial
Services, LLC (which owns the technology, data and analytics business) and ServiceLink Holdings, LLC (which owns
the transaction services business and the ServiceLink business) completed an issuance of a 35% interest to funds
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affiliated with Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P and certain related entities (the _THL Issuance ). On January 3, 2014, FNF
issued a press release announcing the formation of Black Knight and the THL Issuance. A copy of the press release is
attached as Exhibit 99.2 to this report and incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(a) Financial statements of businesses acquired.

The financial statements required by Item 9.01(a) of Form 8-K will be filed by amendment no later than 71 calendar
days after the date this Current Report on Form 8-K is required to be filed.

(b) Pro forma financial information.

The pro forma financial information required by Item 9.01(b) of Form 8-K will be filed by amendment no later than
71 calendar days after the date this Current Report on Form 8-K is required to be filed.

(d) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 28, 2013, among Fidelity National Financial, Inc.,
Lion Merger Sub, Inc. and Lender Processing Services, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Fidelity National
Financial, Inc. s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 28, 2013).

4.1 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 2, 2014, among Lender Processing Services, Inc.,
Fidelity National Financial, Inc., Black Knight Lending Solutions, Inc. and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee.

4.2 Indenture, dated as of October 12, 2012, among Lender Processing Services, Inc., the guarantors
party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Lender Processing Services, Inc., the predecessor to
Black Knight InfoServ, LLC, on October 12, 2012).

99.1 Press release dated January 2, 2014.

99.2 Press release dated January 3, 2014.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Date: January 3, 2014

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

/s/ Michael L. Gravelle
Name: Michael L. Gravelle

Title:  Executive Vice President, General
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 28, 2013, among Fidelity National Financial, Inc.,
Lion Merger Sub, Inc. and Lender Processing Services, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Fidelity National
Financial, Inc. s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 28, 2013).

4.1 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 2, 2014, among Lender Processing Services, Inc.,
Fidelity National Financial, Inc., Black Knight Lending Solutions, Inc. and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee.

4.2 Indenture, dated as of October 12, 2012, among Lender Processing Services, Inc., the guarantors
party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Lender Processing Services, Inc., the predecessor to
Black Knight InfoServ, LLC, on October 12, 2012).

99.1 Press release dated January 2, 2014.

99.2 Press release dated January 3, 2014.
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Annex H FNF s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 15, 2014
UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K

Current Report
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Date of Report (date of earliest event reported):

January 9, 2014

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

001-32630

(Commission File Number)
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Delaware 16-1725106
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (IRS Employer Identification Number)

Incorporation or Organization)
601 Riverside Avenue

Jacksonville, Florida 32204
(Addresses of Principal Executive Offices)
(904) 854-8100

(Registrant s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

(Former Name or Former Address, if Changed Since Last Report)

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of
the registrant under any of the following provisions:

Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))
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Item 5.02 Departure of Directors or Certain Officers; Election of Directors; Appointment of Certain
Officers; Compensatory Arrangements of Certain Officers.
Profits Interest Incentive Plans

On January 9, 2014, each of Black Knight Financial Services, LLC (_BKES ) and ServiceLink Holdings, LLC
(_ServiceLink and together with BKFS, the Operating Subsidiaries ), each an indirect subsidiary of Fidelity National
Financial, Inc. (_ENF ), adopted a 2013 Management Incentive Plan (each, the Profits Interest Plan ) that provides for
the grant of equity interests in BKFS or ServiceLink, respectively, to employees and managers of BKFS, ServiceLink
and their subsidiaries, as applicable. Each equity interest is intended to qualify as a profits interest in the applicable
Operating Subsidiary for U.S. federal income tax purposes and will only have value to the extent the equity value of
each Operating Subsidiary increases beyond the value at issuance. The equity interests are represented by a total of
11,111,111 Class B Units of BKFS reserved for the issuance of awards under the BKFS Profits Interest Plan and
11,111,111 Class B Units of ServiceLink reserved for the issuance of awards under the ServiceLink Profits Interest

Plan. The Class B Units generally vest over a period of three years, subject to the continued service of the awardee,

and are subject to the terms and conditions of the Profits Interest Plan and the Amended and Restated Limited

Liability Company Agreement of the applicable Operating Subsidiary. In connection with the adoption of the Profits
Interest Plans, a Form of Unit Grant Agreement was approved pursuant to which the Operating Subsidiaries may grant
the profits interests from time to time. Awards may be subject to conditions and restrictive covenants.

The foregoing description of the BKFS Profits Interest Plan, the ServiceLink Profits Interest Plan and the Forms of
Unit Grant Agreement is qualified entirely by reference to the full text of the applicable plans and award agreements,
which are attached hereto as Exhibits 10.1, 10.2, 10.3 and 10.4, respectively, and the material terms of which are
incorporated by reference to this Item 5.02.

Synergy Incentive Plans

On January 9, 2014, each of BKFS and ServiceLink also adopted an Incentive Plan pursuant to which employees and
other individuals providing services to the Operating Subsidiaries and/or their respective subsidiaries may earn cash
bonuses based on, among other things, cost savings achieved between July 15, 2013 and December 31, 2015. Bonuses
will be earned and paid on a quarterly basis, starting with the quarter ending on March 31, 2014. The Boards of
Directors or Compensation Committees of BKFS or ServiceLink have the final authority to determine whether a
specific amount will qualify as cost savings under the applicable plan. The aggregate amount of the combined bonus
pool under the Incentive Plans for both Operating Subsidiaries ranges from $0 to $95 million based on achieving cost
savings of between $100 million and $350 million as determined on a sliding scale. No bonuses will be payable unless
annual cost savings is in excess of $100 million.

The foregoing description of the BKFS Incentive Plan and the ServiceLink Incentive Plan is qualified entirely by
reference to the full text of the applicable plans, which are attached hereto as Exhibit 10.5 and 10.6, respectively, and
the material terms of which are incorporated by reference to this Item 5.02.

Employment Agreements with William P. Foley. II

On January 10, 2014, FNF entered into an Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Mr. William P.
Foley, II. Also on January 10, 2014, BKFS I Management, Inc. (_BKFES I Management ) and BKFS II Management,
Inc. (_BKES II Management ), in each case on behalf of the Operating Subsidiaries, entered into employment
agreements with Mr. Foley, pursuant to which he will serve as Chairman of each entity.
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Under Mr. Foley s previous employment agreement with FNF, he was paid an annual base salary of $850,000. Under
the new Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with FNF, Mr. Foley will be paid an annual base salary of
$425,000 and under the new employment agreements with BKFS and ServiceLink, Mr. Foley will be paid an annual
base salary of $212,500, respectively. Mr. Foley s total combined annual
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incentive bonus opportunity will not increase. The agreements also provide for certain benefits generally available to
the entities other employees and contain certain restrictive covenants.

Each of the employment agreements provides for certain payments upon various termination events, such as by the
respective company other than for cause or by Mr. Foley for good reason. The three employment agreements each
contain cross-termination provisions under which a termination for any reason under any one of the three agreements
shall constitute termination under the others for the same reason.

The foregoing description of Mr. Foley s employment agreements with FNF, BKFS I Management, and BKFS II
Management is qualified entirely by reference to the full text of the applicable agreements, which are attached hereto
as Exhibits 10.7, 10.8, and 10.9, respectively, and the material terms of which are incorporated by reference to this
Item 5.02.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(d) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description
10.1 Black Knight Financial Services, LLC 2013 Management Incentive Plan
10.2 ServiceLink Holdings, LLC 2013 Management Incentive Plan
10.3 Form of Black Knight Financial Services, LLC Unit Grant Agreement
104 Form of ServiceLink Holdings, LLC Unit Grant Agreement
10.5 Black Knight Financial Services, LLC Incentive Plan
10.6 ServiceLink Holdings, LLC Incentive Plan
10.7 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and William
P. Foley, II
10.8 Employment Agreement between BKFS I Management, Inc. and William P. Foley, 11
10.9 Employment Agreement between BKFS II Management, Inc. and William P. Foley, II
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Date: January 15, 2014

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ Michael L. Gravelle

Name: Michael L. Gravelle

Title: Executive Vice President, General

Counsel

and Corporate Secretary
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number Description
10.1 Black Knight Financial Services, LLC 2013 Management Incentive Plan
10.2 ServiceLink Holdings, LLC 2013 Management Incentive Plan
10.3 Form of Black Knight Financial Services, LLC Unit Grant Agreement
104 Form of ServiceLink Holdings, LLC Unit Grant Agreement
10.5 Black Knight Financial Services, LLC Incentive Plan
10.6 ServiceLink Holdings, LLC Incentive Plan
10.7 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and William
P. Foley, II
10.8 Employment Agreement between BKFS I Management, Inc. and William P. Foley, 11
10.9 Employment Agreement between BKFS II Management, Inc. and William P. Foley, II
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS; UNDERTAKINGS

Item 20. Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Section 145 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (DGCL) provides that a corporation may
indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or
completed action, suit or proceeding whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or
in the right of the corporation) by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the
corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise), against expenses (including attorneys fees),
judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such
action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to
the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to
believe his conduct was unlawful. Section 145 further provides that a corporation similarly may indemnify any such
person serving in any such capacity who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened,
pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of
the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or is or was serving at the request of
the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or
other enterprise, against expenses (including attorney s fees) actually and reasonably incurred in connection with the
defense or settlement of such action or suit if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or
not opposed to the best interests of the corporation and except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any
claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless and only
to the extent that the Delaware Court of Chancery or such other court in which such action or suit was brought shall
determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all of the circumstances of the case,
such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the Delaware Court of Chancery or
such other court shall deem proper.

As permitted by the DGCL, the Certificate of Incorporation (the Charter) of the Registrant, as will be in effect upon

its filing with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, includes a provision that eliminates the personal liability
of its directors for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability:

for any breach of the director s duty of loyalty to FNF or its stockholders;

for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of
law;

under Section 174 of the DGCL regarding unlawful dividends and stock purchases; or
for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.

As permitted by the DGCL, the Registrant s Charter and bylaws provide that:
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the Registrant is required to indemnify its directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted under the
DGCL, subject to very limited exceptions;

the Registrant is required to advance expenses, as incurred, to its directors and officers in connection with a
proceeding to the maximum extent permitted under the DGCL, subject to very limited exceptions; and

the rights conferred in the Charter or bylaws are not exclusive.
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Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Exhibits. The following is a complete list of Exhibits filed as part of this registration statement.

Exhibit No.
2.1

22

3.1

3.2

4.1

42

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Document

Securities Exchange and Distribution Agreement between Old FNF and the Registrant, dated as of
June 25, 2006, as amended and restated as of September 18, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Annex A to the Registrant s Schedule 14C filed on September 19, 2006 (the Information Statement ))

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 28, 2013, among Fidelity National Financial, Inc.,
Lion Merger Sub, Inc. and Lender Processing Services, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1
to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 28, 2013)

Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
(to be in effect upon its filing with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware) (included as Annex
C to this proxy statement/prospectus forming a part of this Registration Statement)

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Fidelity National Financial, Inc., as adopted on
July 22, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. s

Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 25, 2013)

Specimen certificate for shares of the Registrant s FNF common stock, par value $0.0001 per

share*

Specimen certificate for shares of the Registrant s FNFV common stock, par value $0.0001 per

share*

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 2, 2014, among Lender Processing Services, Inc., Fidelity
National Financial, Inc., Black Knight Lending Solutions, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2013)

Indenture between the Registrant and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., dated
December 8, 2005, relating to the 5.25% notes referred to below (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)

First Supplemental Indenture between the Registrant and the Bank of New York Trust Company,
N.A., dated as of January 6, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on January 24, 20006)

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated May 5, 2010, between the Registrant and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., dated as of May 5, 2010, relating to the 6.60% notes referred to
below (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on May 5, 2010)

Form of Subordinated Indenture between the Registrant and the Bank of New York Trust Company,
N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 (A) to the Registrant s Registration Statement on
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Form S-3 filed on November 14, 2007)

4.8 Form of 6.60% Note due 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on May 5, 2010)

4.9 Form of 4.25% Convertible Note due August 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the
Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 2, 2011)
4.10 Form of the Registrant s Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the
Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (the 2006 Annual
Report )
I1-2
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Exhibit No. Document
5.1 Opinion of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP*
8.1 Opinion of KPMG LLP regarding certain tax matters*
8.2 Form of Opinion of KPMG LLP regarding certain tax matters (to be delivered as a condition to the

closing of the recapitalization)*

10.1 Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of April 16, 2012 to the Credit Agreement among
the Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., and certain agents and other lenders party thereto, dated as of
September 12, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on April 19, 2012)

10.2 Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of March 5, 2010 to the Credit Agreement among
the Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., and certain agents and other lenders party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
March 10, 2010)

10.3 Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan, effective as of
September 26, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Registrant s Schedule 14A filed
on April 12, 2013) (1)

10.4 Bridge Loan Commitment Letter (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2014)

10.5 Amended Revolving Credit Facility (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2014)

10.6 Amended Term Loan Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2014)

10.7 Amendment, dated as of June 25, 2013, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated

as of April 16, 2012, among Fidelity National Financial, Inc., the lenders party thereto, Bank of
America, N.A., as administrative agent, and the other agents party thereto (incorporated by reference
to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 12, 2013)

10.8 Term Loan Credit Agreement, dated as of July 11, 2013, among Fidelity National Financial, Inc., the
lenders party thereto, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, and the other agents party
thereto (incorporated by reference to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 12, 2013)

10.9 Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, effective as of September 26, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2013) (1)

10.10 Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)
(1)

10.11 Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for November 2013 Awards
(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2013)
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10.12 Form of Notice of Stock Option Award Agreement under Amended and Restated Fidelity National
Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for November 2013 Awards (1) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013)
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Exhibit No.
10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Document

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for October 2012 awards
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2012) (1)

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for October 2011 awards
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011) (1)

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for November 2010 awards
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2010) (1)

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for November 2009 awards
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2009) (1)

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012)

ey

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)
ey

Tax Disaffiliation Agreement by and among Old FNF, the Registrant and FIS, dated as of October 23,
2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Old FNF s Form 8-K, filed on October 27, 2006)

Cross-Indemnity Agreement by and between the Registrant and FIS, dated as of October 23, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to FIS s Form 8-K, filed on October 27, 2006)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Anthony J. Park, effective
as of October 10, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Registrant s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008) (1)

Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
the Registrant and Anthony J. Park, effective as of October 10, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009)

ey

Amendment effective July 1, 2012 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the
Registrant and Brent B. Bickett, effective as of July 2, 2008. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 3, 2012) (1)

Amendment effective August 27, 2013 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
BKFS I Management and William P. Foley, II, effective as of July 2, 2008 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.8 to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 15, 2014) (1)
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to Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 15, 2014) (1)
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10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

21.1

23.1

23.2
24.1

Document

Amendment effective August 27, 2013 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
the Registrant and William P. Foley, II, effective as of July 2, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 15, 2014) (1)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and William P. Foley, II,
effective as of July 2, 2008(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008) (1)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Raymond R. Quirk,
effective as of October 10, 2008 (1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)

Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
the Registrant and Raymond R. Quirk, effective as of October 10, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009)

ey

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Michael L. Gravelle,
effective as of January 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012) (1)

Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Annex B to the
Registrant s Schedule 14A filed on April 11, 2011) (1)

Fidelity National Financial, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated, effective
January 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008) (1)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Peter T. Sadowski,
effective as of February 4, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012) (1)

Form of Notice of Long-Term Investment Success Performance Award Agreement Tier 1 under
Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2013) (1)

Form of Notice of Long-Term Investment Success Performance Award Agreement Tier 2 under
Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2013) (1)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to Registrant s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013)

Consent of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1 to the proxy/prospectus forming

a part of this Registration Statement)
Consent of KPMG LLP

Power of Attorney (included in signature page to the initial filing of this Registration Statement)
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Exhibit No. Document
99.1 Form of Proxy Card*

(1) A management or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report pursuant to
Item 15(c) of Form 10-K
*  Previously filed

(b) Financial Statement Schedules. Schedules not listed above have been omitted because the information set forth
therein is not material, not applicable or is included in the financial statements or notes of the proxy
statement/prospectus which forms a part of this registration statement.

Item 22. Undertakings
The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration
statement: (i) to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933; (ii) to reflect in the
prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent
post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the
information set forth in the registration statement (notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume
of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any
deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of
prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent
no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of Registration Fee
table in the effective registration statement); and (iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of
distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the
registration statement.

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective
amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the
offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which
remain unsold at the termination of the offering.

(4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933, to any purchaser: if the Registrant
is subject to Rule 430C, each prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) as part of a registration statement relating to an
offering, other than registration statements relying on Rule 430B or other than prospectuses filed in reliance on Rule
430A, shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the date it is first used after
effectiveness. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the
registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration
statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale
prior to such first use, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus
that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such date of first use.
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in the initial distribution of the securities, the undersigned Registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of
securities of the undersigned Registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method
used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such
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purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned Registrant will be a seller to the
purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser: (i) any preliminary prospectus or
prospectus of the undersigned Registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424; (ii) any free
writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned Registrant or used or referred to
by the undersigned Registrant; (iii) the portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing
material information about the undersigned Registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned
Registrant; and (iv) any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned Registrant to the
purchaser.

(6) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser, each filing of the
Registrant s annual report pursuant to Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing
of an employee benefit plan s annual report pursuant to Section 15 (d) of the Exchange Act) that is incorporated by
reference in this registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities
offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering
thereof.

(7) That prior to any public reoffering of the securities registered hereunder through use of a prospectus which is a part
of this registration statement by any person or party who is deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of Rule
145(c), the Registrant undertakes that such reoffering prospectus will contain the information called for by the
applicable registration form with respect to reofferings by persons who may be deemed underwriters, in addition to
the information called for by the other items of the applicable form.

(8) That every prospectus (i) that is filed pursuant to paragraph (5) above, or (ii) that purports to meet the requirements
of Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 and is used in connection with an offering of securities subject to
Rule 415, will be filed as a part of an amendment to this registration statement and will not be used until such
amendment has become effective, and that for the purpose of determining liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933,
each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities
offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering
thereof.

(9) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors,
officers and controlling persons of the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Registrant has
been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities
Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities
(other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of
the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer, or
controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its
counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question
of whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be
governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

(10) To deliver or cause to be delivered with the prospectus, to each person to whom the prospectus is sent or given,
the latest annual report to security holders that is incorporated by reference in the prospectus and furnished pursuant to
and meeting the requirements of Rule 14a-3 or Rule 14c-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and, where
interim financial information required to be presented by Article 3 of Regulation S-X are not set forth in the
prospectus, to deliver, or cause to be delivered to each person to whom the prospectus is sent or given, the latest
quarterly report that is specifically incorporated by reference in the prospectus to provide such interim financial
information.
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incorporated documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means. This includes information contained in
documents filed subsequent to the effective date of the registration statement through the date of responding to the
request.

(12) To supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction, and the company
being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in this registration statement when it became
effective.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Jacksonville,
Florida, on May 8, 2014.

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.

By: /s/ Michael L. Gravelle
Name: Michael L. Gravelle
Title: Executive Vice President, General

Counsel and Corporate Secretary
SIGNATURES AND POWER OF ATTORNEY

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed by
the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Raymond R. Quirk* Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
Raymond R. Quirk May 8, 2014
/s/ Anthony J. Park* Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)
Anthony J. Park May 8, 2014

/s/ William P. Foley, I1*

William P. Foley, II Director and Executive Chairman of the Board May 8, 2014
/s/ Douglas K. Ammerman*

Douglas K. Ammerman Director May 8, 2014
/s/ Willie D. Davis*

Willie D. Davis Director May 8, 2014
/s/ Thomas M. Hagerty*

Thomas M. Hagerty Director May 8, 2014

/s/ Daniel D. (Ron) Lane*
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Daniel D. (Ron) Lane Director May 8, 2014
/s/ Richard N. Massey*

Richard N. Massey Director May 8, 2014
/s/ John D. Rood*

John D. Rood Director May 8, 2014
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Signature Title Date

/s/ Peter O. Shea, Jr.*

Peter O. Shea, Jr. Director May 8, 2014

/s/ Cary H. Thompson*

Cary H. Thompson Director May 8§, 2014

/s/ Frank P. Willey*

Frank P. Willey Director May 8, 2014

*By: /s/ Michael L. Gravelle
Michael L. Gravelle

Attorney-in-fact for persons indicated
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Exhibit No.
2.1

22

3.1

3.2

4.1

42

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

EXHIBIT INDEX

Document

Securities Exchange and Distribution Agreement between Old FNF and the Registrant, dated as of
June 25, 2006, as amended and restated as of September 18, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Annex A to the Registrant s Schedule 14C filed on September 19, 2006 (the Information Statement ))

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 28, 2013, among Fidelity National Financial, Inc.,
Lion Merger Sub, Inc. and Lender Processing Services, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1
to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 28, 2013)

Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
(to be in effect upon its filing with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware) (included as Annex
C to this proxy statement/prospectus forming a part of this Registration Statement)

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Fidelity National Financial, Inc., as adopted on
July 22, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. s

Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 25, 2013)

Specimen certificate for shares of the Registrant s FNF common stock, par value $0.0001 per

share*

Specimen certificate for shares of the Registrant s FNFV common stock, par value $0.0001 per

share*

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 2, 2014, among Lender Processing Services, Inc., Fidelity
National Financial, Inc., Black Knight Lending Solutions, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2013)

Indenture between the Registrant and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., dated
December 8, 2005, relating to the 5.25% notes referred to below (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)

First Supplemental Indenture between the Registrant and the Bank of New York Trust Company,
N.A., dated as of January 6, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on January 24, 20006)

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated May 5, 2010, between the Registrant and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., dated as of May 5, 2010, relating to the 6.60% notes referred to
below (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on May 5, 2010)

Form of Subordinated Indenture between the Registrant and the Bank of New York Trust Company,
N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 (A) to the Registrant s Registration Statement on
Form S-3 filed on November 14, 2007)
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4.8 Form of 6.60% Note due 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on May 5, 2010)

4.9 Form of 4.25% Convertible Note due August 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the
Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 2, 2011)

4.10 Form of the Registrant s Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the
Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (the 2006 Annual
Report )
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Exhibit No. Document
5.1 Opinion of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP*
8.1 Opinion of KPMG LLP regarding certain tax matters*
8.2 Form of Opinion of KPMG LLP regarding certain tax matters (to be delivered as a condition to the

closing of the recapitalization)*

10.1 Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of April 16, 2012 to the Credit Agreement among
the Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., and certain agents and other lenders party thereto, dated as of
September 12, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on April 19, 2012)

10.2 Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of March 5, 2010 to the Credit Agreement among
the Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., and certain agents and other lenders party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
March 10, 2010)

10.3 Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan, effective as of
September 26, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Registrant s Schedule 14A filed
on April 12, 2013) (1)

10.4 Bridge Loan Commitment Letter (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2014)

10.5 Amended Revolving Credit Facility (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2014)

10.6 Amended Term Loan Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2014)

10.7 Amendment, dated as of June 25, 2013, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated

as of April 16, 2012, among Fidelity National Financial, Inc., the lenders party thereto, Bank of
America, N.A., as administrative agent, and the other agents party thereto (incorporated by reference
to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 12, 2013)

10.8 Term Loan Credit Agreement, dated as of July 11, 2013, among Fidelity National Financial, Inc., the
lenders party thereto, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, and the other agents party
thereto (incorporated by reference to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 12, 2013)

10.9 Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, effective as of September 26, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2013) (1)

10.10 Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)
(1)

10.11 Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for November 2013 Awards
(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2013)

Table of Contents 169



Edgar Filing: EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORP - Form 10-K

10.12 Form of Notice of Stock Option Award Agreement under Amended and Restated Fidelity National
Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for November 2013 Awards (1) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013)
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Exhibit No.
10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Document

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for October 2012 awards
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2012) (1)

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for October 2011 awards
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011) (1)

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for November 2010 awards
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2010) (1)

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for November 2009 awards
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2009) (1)

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012)

ey

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Award Agreement under Amended and
Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)
ey

Tax Disaffiliation Agreement by and among Old FNF, the Registrant and FIS, dated as of October 23,
2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Old FNF s Form 8-K, filed on October 27, 2006)

Cross-Indemnity Agreement by and between the Registrant and FIS, dated as of October 23, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to FIS s Form 8-K, filed on October 27, 2006)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Anthony J. Park, effective
as of October 10, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Registrant s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008) (1)

Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
the Registrant and Anthony J. Park, effective as of October 10, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009)

ey

Amendment effective July 1, 2012 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the
Registrant and Brent B. Bickett, effective as of July 2, 2008. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 3, 2012) (1)

Amendment effective August 27, 2013 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
BKFS I Management and William P. Foley, II, effective as of July 2, 2008 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.8 to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 15, 2014) (1)
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10.25 Amendment effective August 27, 2013 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
BKEFS Il Management and William P. Foley, II, effective as of July 2, 2008 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 15, 2014) (1)
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10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

21.1

23.1

23.2
24.1

Document

Amendment effective August 27, 2013 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
the Registrant and William P. Foley, II, effective as of July 2, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 15, 2014) (1)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and William P. Foley, II,
effective as of July 2, 2008(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008) (1)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Raymond R. Quirk,
effective as of October 10, 2008 (1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)

Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
the Registrant and Raymond R. Quirk, effective as of October 10, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009)

ey

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Michael L. Gravelle,
effective as of January 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012) (1)

Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Annex B to the
Registrant s Schedule 14A filed on April 11, 2011) (1)

Fidelity National Financial, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated, effective
January 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008) (1)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Peter T. Sadowski,
effective as of February 4, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012) (1)

Form of Notice of Long-Term Investment Success Performance Award Agreement Tier 1 under
Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2013) (1)

Form of Notice of Long-Term Investment Success Performance Award Agreement Tier 2 under
Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2013) (1)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to Registrant s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013)

Consent of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1 to the proxy/prospectus forming

a part of this Registration Statement)
Consent of KPMG LLP

Power of Attorney (included in signature page to the initial filing of this Registration Statement)
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Exhibit No. Document
99.1 Form of Proxy Card*

(1) A management or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report pursuant to
Item 15(c) of Form 10-K

*  Previously filed
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